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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS .

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members Of
Godrej Capital Limited (formerly, Pyxis Holdings Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Godrej Capital Limited (“the
Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries “Pyxis Employee Stock Option Trust”, Godrej Finance
Limited (formerly Ensemble Holdings & Finance Limited) and “Godrej Housing Finance
Limited” (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) which
comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and
the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as the “consolidated financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2023, the consolidated
loss, consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash

flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our

report.
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Key Audit Matter

Auditor’s Response

Impairment of financial assets as at the
balance sheet date (Expected Credit Loss) —
housing finance business

As described in Note no 2.12.A on Significant
Accounting Policies, Note 4, 10 and 29 of the
Financial Statements.

One of the Holding Company’s subsidiary has
determined that the allowance for Expected
Credit Loss (ECL) on loan assets has a high
degree of estimation uncertainty, with a
potential range of reasonable outcomes for the
financial statements.

Ind AS 109 requires the subsidiary to provide
for impairment of its financial assets designated
at amortised cost and fair value through other
comprehensive  income  (including  loan
receivables and investments) using the expected
credit loss (ECL) approach. ECL involves an
estimation of probability-weighted loss on
financial instruments over their life, considering
reasonable and supportable information about
past events, current conditions, and forecasts of
future economic conditions which could impact
the credit quality of the subsidiary’s financial
assets. 'The key areas where they identitied
greater levels of management judgement and
therefore increased levels of audit focus in the
subsidiary’s estimation of ECLs are:

e In process for or estimation of ECL for the
subsidiary, the entire portfolio has been
segmented into various homogenous product
segments.

o The subsidiary’s portfolio currently has
neither a sufficiently long history nor adequate
number of defaults to use own data for
estimation of Probability of Default (PD). A
Logistic Regression model developed on the
lookalike data obtained from Experian for
estimating the PD of Applicant for a 24 Month
period, has been used for PD estimation.

e Bureau data for product segment during the
period January 2016 to October 2017 was
considered for scorecard development. The
lookalike population was arrived at by
considering the ticket size, location, age and
peer institution. Performance was monitored for
the above selected accounts from account open
_date, giving an outcome period of 24 months for
2 | customers. Appropriate adjustments based
;@m}lbmeau data has been carried out to align the
)3

We have examined the ECL methodology of the
subsidiary, which has been reviewed by the
Board of Directors, and have confirmed that
adjustments to the output of the ECL model is
consistent with the documented methodology.

Read and assessed the subsidiary’s accounting
policies for impairment of financial assets and
their compliance with Ind AS 109.

Our audit procedures relating to the allowance for
ECL included the following, among others:

Tested the design and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls relevant to the
impairment loss allowance process, as detailed

below:
- completeness and accuracy of the Exposure at

Default (“EAD”).

- appropriateness of information used in the
estimation of the Probability of Default (“PD”)
and Loss given Default (“LGD”) for the different

loan portfolio.

- reconciled the total loans considered for ECL
assessment with the books of accounts to ensure

the completeness.

Performed the following substantive procedures
on sample of loan assets:

- Tested categorization of loan portfolio into
different segments.

- Tested the accuracy of information such as
ratings and other related information used in
estimating the PD.

- Reviewed the JSON file obtained from Credit
Rating Agency to recompute the score as per the
ECL Model provided to us, on sample basis.

- Performed inquiries with the Company’s
Management and its risk management function to
assess basis for determining the PD and LGD

rates.

- Evaluated the methodology used to determine
macroeconomic overlays.

- Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation
of ECL provision performed by the Company in
spreadsheets.
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PD models to the required ECL performance
period.

» The Loss Given Default (LGD) is an estimate
of the loss arising in the case where a default
occurs at a given time. It is based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows
due and those that the lender would expect to
receive, including from the realisation of any
collateral. It is usually expressed as a percentage
of the EAD. The Company’s Portfolio is at a
nascent stage and has till date had no defaults.
Given the nature of the business, nascency of
business and restricted observation period, a
Loss Given Default (LGD) Rate has been
considered based on the industry trend.

e In case of Exposure at Default (EAD), the
principal outstanding for the accounts has been
considered as EAD. If required, definition of the
above segments can change with business
expansion, change in portfolio performance or
economic cycle. Each segment is further split
into delinquency buckets. For each such bucket,
Probability of Default (PD), Loss Given Default
(LGD) and EAD are estimated. In addition to
the output of the ECL models, macroeconomic
overlays and adjustments are recognised by the
subsidiary to align historic LGD estimates with
the current collection and recovery practices.

The subsidiary has considered a management
overlay of Rs. 736.78 lakhs (PY Rs.487.30
lakhs) as part of its ECL, to reflect among other
things an increased risk of deterioration in
macro-economic factors. The management
overlay is based on various uncertain variables,
which could result in actual credit loss being
different than that being estimated.

In view of such high degree of Management’s
judgement involved in estimation of ECL, it is a
key audit matter.

financial statements in respect of ECL to confirm
compliance with Ind AS provisions.

Assessed the disclosures included in the

-‘-‘J‘Q{'\\.

Impairment of financial assets as at the
balance sheet date (Expected Credit Loss) —
business in respect of loan against property

One of the Holding Company’s subsidiary has
determined that the allowance for Expected
Credit Loss (ECL) on loan and advances assets
has a high degree of estimation uncertainty.

Refer Note 4, 10 and 29 to the Financial
Statements

N .
Bijice the loans and advances form a major

u?;;u ion of the subsidiary’s assets, and due to the
I=

« We

evaluated appropriateness of the
impairment principles used by management
based on the requirements of Ind AS 109, our
business understanding.

We assessed the design and implementation of
key internal financial controls over loan
impairment process used to calculate the
impairment charge.

We evaluated management’s controls over
collation of relevant information used for
determining estimates for ~management
overlays.
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significance of the judgments used in
classifying loans and advances into various
stages as stipulated in Indian Accounting
Standard (IND AS) 109 and the management
estimation of the related impairment provisions.
this is considered to be a key audit matter.

The subsidiary’s impairment allowance is
derived from estimates including the historical
default and loss ratios. Management exercises
judgement in determining the quantum of loss
based on a range of factors

The most significant areas are:

- Segmentation of loan book

- Determination of exposure at default

- Loan staging criteria

- Calculation of probability of default / Loss
given default

- Consideration of probability weighted
scenarios and forward looking macro-economic
factors

The application of ECL model requires several
data inputs. This increases the risk of
completeness and accuracy of the data that has
been used to create assumptions in the model.

« We tested review controls over measurement
of impairment allowances and disclosures in
financial statements.

Assessment of impairment of Goodwill

As disclosed in note 33, the Group has goodwill
of Rs 29,449.91 lakhs as at March 31, 2023
which represents goodwill acquired through
business combination and allocated to cash
generating unit of the Company.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated and to which intangible assets
belong to is tested for impairment annually, or
more frequently when there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired. As disclosed in note
33, impairment of goodwill is determined by
assessing the recoverable amount of each cash
generating unit to which these assets relate.

Due to the significance of the carrying value of
goodwill and judgment involved in performing
impairment test, this matter was considered
significant to our audit.

Our audit procedures included the following:

Obtained an understanding of the process
followed by the management to determine the
recoverable amounts of cash generating units
to which the goodwill and intangible assets

pertain to;

We compared the future operating cash flow
forecasts with the approved business plan and
budgets;

Evaluated the objectivity and independence of
the specialists engaged by the Company and
reviewed the valuation reports issued by such
specialists;

Evaluated the model used in determining the
value in use of the cash generating units;

o Tested the arithmetical accuracy of the
computation of recoverable amounts of cash
generating units;

» Compared the transaction price considered for
the said subsidiary shares in the transaction
undertaken on 30" March 2023 vis a vis the
fair value that was considered initially at the
time of goodwill recognition; and
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« We also assessed the disclosures provided by
the Company in relation to its annual impairment
test in note 33 to the financial statements.

“Information Technology (“IT”) Systems and
Controls

One of the Holding Company’s subsidiary has a
complex IT architecture to support its day-to-
day business operations. Moderate volume of
transactions is processed and recorded multiple
applications. The reliability and security of IT
systems plays a key role in the business
operations of the subsidiary. Since transactions
are processed on daily basis in multiple
applications hence IT controls are required to
ensure that applications process data as expected
and that changes are made in an appropriate
manner.

Appropriate IT general controls and application
controls are required to ensure that such IT
systems are able to process the data, as required,
completely, accurately and consistently for
reliable financial reporting.

We have identified ‘IT systems and controls’ as
a key audit matter because of the high-level
automation, significant number of systems
being used by the management and the
complexity of the IT architecture and its impact
on the financial reporting system.

Our Audit procedures with respect to this matter
included the following:

« Involved IT specialists as part of the audit for
the purpose of testing the IT general controls
and application controls (automated and semi-
automated controls) to determine the accuracy
of the information produced by the
subsidiary’s 1T systems.

Obtained an understanding of IT applications
landscape implemented by the subsidiary,
including an understanding of the process,
mapping of applications and understanding
financial risks posed by people-process and
technology.

Tested operating effectiveness of key controls
over user access management, change
management program development, computer
operations, backup.

Also tested Entity Level Controls pertaining to I'T
Policy and Procedure and Business Continuity
Plan assessment.

Tested the design and operating effectiveness of
certain automated controls within application that
were considered as key internal controls over the
financial reporting system.

Information technology (IT) systems used in
financial reporting process.

One of the Holding Company’s subsidiary’s
operational and financial processes are
dependent on IT systems due to large volume of
transactions that are processed daily.

We therefore identified [T systems and controls
over financial reporting as a key audit matter for
the Company.

We obtained an understanding of the subsidiary’s
IT control environment relevant to the audit.

We tested the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of the subsidiary’s
General IT controls over the key IT systems
which are critical to financial reporting.

We also tested key automated and manual
controls and logic for system generated reports
relevant to the andit that would materially impact
the financial statements.

In addition to above, we have also relied on the
work of the internal auditors.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

/C‘-{;ﬁ}\tloldmo Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.

?.
= WKIM TRER her information comprises the information included in the Director’s Report but does not include

{
Z MUM%N ’FE 1solidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated total
comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in
accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no

realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs, will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness

of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease

to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which
have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for

our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider
AN %i;ative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work a.nd in
o aﬂf'lﬂ ing the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the

= Munsens

lated financial statements.
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We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of one subsidiary company whose financial statements reflect
total assets of INR 17,1597.88 lakhs (before consolidation adjustments) as at March 31, 2023, total
revenues of INR 5,669.58 lakhs (before consolidation adjustments), net loss (before consolidation
adjustments) of INR 6,898.25 lakhs and net cash inflows amounting to INR 9,395.81 lakhs for the year
ended on that date, as considered in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements. These
financial statements have been audited by another auditor whose report has been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary, and our report in terms of sub-sections
(3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary is based solely

on the report of the other auditor.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements, below, is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on the

work done and the report of the other auditor.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated

financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the report of the other auditor.

¢) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
M relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
G | financial statements.
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In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on March 31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and
on the basis of the report of the statutory auditor of its subsidiary companies none of the
directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, is disqualified as on March
31,2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act,

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
Annexure ‘A’ which is based on the auditor’s reports of the Holding Company and its
subsidiary companies. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to the

financial statements,

With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197 (16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Holding
Company to its director during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of

the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, we further report that:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its consolidated financial
position in its consolidated financial statements — Refer Note. 31 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The Group did not have any long - term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies.

(a) The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act, have represented to us that, to the best of their
knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding
Company or its subsidiaries to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company or
its subsidiaries (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act have represented, that, to the best of it’s
knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the note 44 to the accounts, no funds have
been received by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries from any person or entity,
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
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writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of its subsidiaries shall, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances performed by us on the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e),
as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

The Holding Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended March
31,2023.

As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the
Company only with effect from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable.

2. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”/ “CARO”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section

143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s report, according to the information and
explanations given to us, based on the CARO report issued by us for the Holding Company and one
subsidiary and the CARO report issued by the auditor of the subsidiary company, included in the
consolidated financial statements of the Company, to which reporting under CARO is applicable,
we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports.

For Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 104607W/W 100166

a2

Roshni R. Marfatia

Partner

Membership No.: 106548

UDIN: 23106548BGUVXUS312
Place: Mumbai
Dated: May 4, 2023
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Annexure ‘A’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in Para 2 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section in
our Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of the Company on the consolidated financial

statements for the year ended March 31, 2023).

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Godrej Capital
Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India as at March 31,
2023 in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year

ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated
in India are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Holding Company and its
subsidiary companies incorporated in India considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and, both
issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if

such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due

to fraud or error.

¢ believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
ABors referred to in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph below is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
‘5’5 ‘or our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system with reference to financial
nts of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedutes that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect

on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may

deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements were generally operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal
control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the respective companies
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal

Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the [CAL

Other Matter
Our aforesaid report under section 143 (3) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of

the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements insofar as it relates to a subsidiary
company is based on the corresponding report of the auditor of such company.

For Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 104607W/W 100166

Ve g

Roshni R. Marfatia

Partner

Membership No.: 106548

UDIN: 23106548BGUVXUS5312
Place: Mumbai

Dated: May 4, 2023




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly known as Pyxis Holdings Limited)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2023

(Amount Rs. in Lakh)
Note As at March 31,2023  As at March 31, 2022

A ASSETS
Non Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 1,006.18 496.63
Right of Use Assets 3 2,209.16 1,601.08
Goodwill 33 29,449.91 29,449.91
Other Intangible Assets 3 6,007.42 3,750.49
Intangible Assets Under Development 3 60.55 1,441.97

Financial Assets

Loans from financing activity 4 4,68,502.27 1,70,373.28
Other Financial Assets 5 992.55 211.75
Deferred Tax Assets (net) 34 530.67 -
Other Tax Assets (net) 34 355.03 259.92
Other Non Current Assets 6 121.20 76.14
Current Assets
Financial Assets
Investments 7 19,524.49 4,129.77
Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 73,721.58 22,968.53
Other Bank Balances 9 4,046.60 0.10
Loans from financing activity 10 44,897.22 8,217.60
Other Financial Assets 11 642.29 2,02
Other Current Assets 12 931.44 459.01
TOTAL ASSETS 6,52,998.56 2.43.444.19
B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 13 24.55 14.81
Other Equity 14 1,45,479.31 74,107.87
Non - Controlling Interest - 2,341.58
TOTAL EQUITY 1,45,503.86 76,464.26
Liabilities
Non Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 15 4,09,456.40 1,09,839.98
Lease Liabilities 16 1,600.67 1,168.71
Provisions 17 168.84 115.01
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 18 81,810.92 44,784.57
Lease Liabilities 19 663.62 41541
Other Financial Liabilities 20 10,089.68 8,183.22
Trade Payables 21
Total oulstan_dmg dues of micro enterprise and 45.95 25.66
small enterprises
Total outstanfimg dues _of creditors f)ther than 2,812.43 2,018.54
small enterprises and micro enterprises
Other Current Liabilities 22 630.32 414.45
Current Tax Liabilities (net) 34 199.98 -
Provisions 23 15.89 1438
TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,07,494.70 1,66,979.93
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 6.52,998.56 2.43.444.19
Significant Ac ing Policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statement.

As per our report of even date attached

For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS For and orf behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number 104607W/W 100166

-

Roshni Marfatia Manish Shah njsha Adi Godrej
Managing Director & Non executive
FAEHey CEO Chairperson

Membership Number: 106548 DIN: 06422627 DIN: 00432983
Date: May 4, 2023

Place: Mumbai

Kunal Karnani
CFO




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly known as Pyxis Holdings Limited)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(Amount Rs. in Lakh)

Not For the year ended For the year ended
o March31,2023  _ March31,2022
Revenue from Operations 24 28,415.12 3,909.43
Other Income 25 5,558.29 1,576.83
Net gain on de-recognition of financial assets 25a 717.40 .
at amortized cost
Total Income 34.690.81 5,486.26
Expenses
Employee Benefits Expenses 26 10,009.78 5,505.29
Finance Costs 27 19,146.34 2,854.83
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 28 1,897.31 727.14
Other Expenses 29 6,739.03 2,701.64
Total Expenses 37,792.46 11,788.90
(Loss) Before Tax (3,101.65) (6,302.64)
Tax Expense
Current tax 537.74 €
Short provision for earlier years 10.12 0.59
Deferred Tax Credit (537.74) -
(Loss) After Tax (3,111.77) (6.303.23)
Other Comprehensive loss
Items that will not be reclassifled to proflt
or loss:
-Ri (losses) on defined
benefit plans E08 436
-Income tax effect relating to these items (.07 .
that will not be reclassified to profit or loss :
(3.99) 4.56
Total Comprehensive (Loss) for the period (3,115.76) (6.298.67)
(Loss) attributable to the:
Owners of the company (2,956.96) (6,029.64)
Non - Controlling Interest (154.81) (273.59)
Other Comprehensive (Loss) attributable to the:
Owners of the company (3.79) 4.33
Non - Controlling Interest (0.20) 0.23
Total Comprehensive (Loss) for the period
attributable to the:
Owners of the company (2,960.75) (6,025.31)
Non - Controlling Interest (155.01) (273.36)
(Loss) Per Equity Share
Basic and Diluted in Rs 30 (1,442.10) (6,747.60)
Face Value Per Share in Rs 10.00 10.00
Significant Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statement,

As per our report of even date attached
For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP ¥
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS For and on bjhalf of the Board of Directors

Firm Registration Number 104607W/W100166

w2

Roshni Marfatia Manish Shah irojsha Adi Godrej
Partner Managing Director & Non executive

CEO Chairperson
Membership Number: 106548 DIN: 06422627 DIN: 00432983
Date: May 4, 2023
Place: Mumbai

Kunal Katnani
CFO




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly known as Pyxls Holdiags Limlted)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
(Amount Rs, in Lakh)

For the year ended For the year eaded
March 31,2013 Maych 31,2022

A Cush Flow from Operntiag Activities

(Loss) before 1ax (3,101.65) {6.302.64)
Adjustmonts for ;
Na gainon Bir valuc changes (1,36263) (195.53)
Irmpsirment on Grancisl instnunons 1,526 65 56615
D ] jon and impai 1,897 31 714
Inityest exponses on Leasc Liabititics 148.90 6669
Intarcst income on soauzity deposits (1599) ©57)
Intaest income on CP (301 40} (73.00)
Intarest on bonowings 18,888 )4 2,71512
Gain on Leasc modification - (17623)
Insorvss en Inoosi Tax Refund (237 -
Inierest income received from fixed deposits with banks (181,84) 95.06)
2404 0.04

ESOP compansation cost X
Operailog Cash Flow before Working Caplisl Changes 12,507.17 (3.,039.05)

Changes la working capital
Adjs for (I cese {a op assets:

(Ircrense) in Financial Assas (3,25,726.30) (1,34396.70)
(Increasc) in Non Financial Assas (1,157 76) osn
AdJ for In
Incraascin Financial Liabilives 2,603.44 8,966 67
{Dixzeasc) in Non Financial Lubilities 174 20 (505.36)
Net Cash (Uscd In) Operatlng Acdvirles (3.16,509.15) (1,28,982.25)
Discct Taxes paid (430.62) {248.28)
Ner Cash (Used In) Operating Activities A} {3,06,939.77) (149&.53'_'
B Casb Flow From Investing Actlviiles
(Purclase) of proparty, plant asd equipmen (1,74208) (299.06)
{Purchasc) in Intangibles Assas (756.28) (1,794 98)
Salc of propaty, plant and equipmcni and intangible asseis 140 -
Prirchase of investmant in subsidlary . (40,590 00)
Purchese of investmonts (7,97,83422) (2,13,528 21)
Saleof Invesmmant 7,82,439.60 2,1546731
Proconds from Gxad deposits with banks 55,987.83 (42,19292)
Invesiment in fixed deposits with banks (60,034 43) 4119292
Interest income on CP 301 .40 73.00
Interest income reccived fom Gxed deposits with banks 183 .84 95.16
Net Cask (Used in) lavestiog Actlvitles (i) {21.452,94) [40.576.78)
€ Cash Flow From Finandng Activitles
Share {ssue cxpenses (2578) 401 93)
Proanuds from Isswe of oquity shares (Includiop senpities premium) 68,552.10 80,91622
lnvesurent in subsidiary by NC} 3,605.00 8211
Proceads from bonowings 5,78,320,79 1,68,300.60
Repavmenl of Boimowings (2)41,678.02) 5525417
Tt i botrowlnps (18,888.14) (2o3.02)
Repaymant of leasc oblipations (740,19) (302,73)
Net Cash From R Actlvit (© 3589,145.76 1.92.635.04
Net Increase In Cash Aad Cash Equlvafents (A+B+C) 40,753.05 21427.73
Cash sod Cush Equivalents at the begloning of the yesr 22,968 53 LIRE]
Cash ired on isition of subsidi: - 59.63
Cash aad Cash Equivsieots at the end of the year 72721.58 22.968.53
T
Note:
Cash gnd Cash Equlvalcnts af year cod comprises:
Batances with Baoks
Cumen Accounts 16,561 86 1577026
Caificate of Deposits having malurily less than 3 months 46,866 ,10 2,49732
Deposits having niatinity Jess than 3 months 10.193.62 4,700.95
73, 72].;8_' 11,‘26!.5!

The Cash Flows Statemeni has been prepared under the indiroa mathod as sct out fa Indian Accounting Stambard (Ind AS 7) on
“Stajaman of Cash Flows* and presents cash flows by operating. investing and Snancing activisies

The nccompanying notes fonm an integral part of the convolidated finuncial naiement,

As perour report of cven date attached
For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP For and on
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Fina Registration Number 104607W/W 100166

of the Board of Directors

Teha Adi God

Rostml Marfatia Manish Shub

Non execntlve
Partuer Managing Director & CEO Chalrperson
Membership Number: 106548 DIN: 06422627 DIN: 00432983

Date: May 4, 2023
Place: Mumbai

Kuosl Ksrnaol
CFO
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2.02

2.03

GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly known as Pyxis Holdings Limited)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Corporate Information

GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED ("the Company™) (Formerly known as Pyxis Holdings Limited) along with it's subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
"the Group"), is engaged in the business of housing finance, loans against property and to invest in and acquire, hold, scll, buy, subscribe or

otherwise deal in shares, stocks etc by any company.

Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statement of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified by

Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") to be read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. The consolidated financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 comprises of the balance sheet, statement of profit and loss, statement of cash flow, statement of
changes in equity and notes to consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 are

approved by the Board of Directors on May 4, 2023.

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, as the Management is satisfied that the Company shall be able to continue its
business for the foreseeable future and no material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on going concern assumption. In making this
assessment, the Management has considered a wide range of information relating to present and future conditions, including future projections of

profitability, cash flows and capital resources.

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the consolidated financial statements. All assets and liabilities have
been classified as current or non current as per the group's normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Division II of Schedule I to the
Act. Based on the nature of products and services and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents, the group has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of cwrrent or non-current classification of assets and

liabilities.
Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under the historical cost convention as modified by the application of

fair value measurements required or allowed by the relevant standards under Ind-AS.
Historical cost is generally the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and

services.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared cn a historical cost basis except for the fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOC]I) instnunents and certain financial assets and financial liabilites measured at fair value through profit and loss statement (FVTPL). “\

Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind-AS requires management to make estimates, judgements and assumptions that affect

the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and disclosures as of the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these
estimates. Accounting estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and could change from period to period. Appropriate
changes in estimates are recognised in the periods in which the group becomes aware of the changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates.
Any revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods. The estimates
and judgements that have significant impact on the carrying amount of assets and Habilities at each balance sheet date listed here in below under

critical accounting estimates and judgements.




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly known as Pyxis Holdings Limited)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

2.04 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates, which, by definition in some cases vary with the

actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement and make certain assumptions in applying the group’s accounting policies and
preparation of consolidated financial statements.

The use of such estimates, judgements and assumptions affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities including the
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in the future periods.

Estimates and judgements are continuously evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors including expectations of future
events that may have a financial impact on the group and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Information about critical judgements in applying accounting policies, as well as estimates and assumptions that have the most significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and Liabilities within the next financial year, are included in the following notes:

A. Measurement of impairment of loans and advances
Judgement is required by management in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining an impairment loss for

loans and advances in new businesses. In estimating these cash flows, the group makes judgements about the borrower’s financial situation compare
the borrower’s profile with customers having similar profile to estimate probability of default and the net realisable value of collateral, if any. These
estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors including forward looking information, and actual results may differ, resulting in

future changes to the impairment allowance.

B. Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
The group reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each reporting period or even earlier

in case, circumstances change such that the amount recorded value of an asset may not be recoverable.

C. Fair value of financial instruments
The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the

principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the
balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of valuation
models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation is required in
establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates include considerations of liquidity and model inputs related to items such as credit risk (both own
and counterparty), funding value adjustments, correlation and volatility. For further details about determination of fair value please see Note - 40.

D. Business model assessment
Classification and measurement of financial asset depends upon the results of the solely payment of principal and interest (SPPI) and the business

model test. The group determines the business model at a level that reflects how group of financial asset are managed together to achieve a particular
business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the asset is evaluated and
their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are
compensated. The group monitors financial assets measured at amortised or fair value through other comprehensive income that are derecognised
prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which

the asset was held.
E. Measurement of Impairment of goodwill (Refer note 2.10)

F. Effective interest rate
The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or

financial lability to the gross carrying amount of a financial (i.e. its amortised cost before any impairment allowance) or to the amortised cost of a
financial liability. This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and lifecycle of the instruments

and other fee income/expense that are integral parts of the instrument.




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly known as Pyxis Holdings Limited)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

2.05 Amendment to Existing IND AS

2.06

2.07
@

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by
issuing the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from April 1, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements:
The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy

information, together with other information, is material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general
purpose financial statements. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes
The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations. The amendments

narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it no longer applies to
transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. The Company is evaluating the impact, if

any, in its financial statements.

Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a change in accounting
estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in
financial statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any

significant impact in its financial statements.

Functional Currency
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the Group’s functional currency. All financial information presented

in Indian rupees have been rounded to the nearest lakh, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of Consolidation
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities that are controlled by the Company. Control exists when the group is exposed or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. In assessing control, potential voting rights
are considered only if the rights are substantive. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in these consolidated financial statements from

the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar
circumstances. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are consistent with those of previous year.
The financial statements of the company and its subsidiaries have been combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together the values of like items
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after eliminating intra-group balances, intra-group transactions atd the unrealised profits/ losses, unless

cost/ revenue cannot be recovered.

The excess of cost to the company of its investment in subsidiaries, on the acquisition dates over and above the company’s share of equity in the
subsidiaries, is recognised as ‘Goodwill on Consolidation’ being an asset in the consolidated financial statements. The said Goodwill is not
amortised, however, it is tested for impairment at each balance sheet date and the impairment loss, if any, is provided for. Where the share of equity
in subsidiaries as on the date of investment is in excess of cost of investments of the Group, it is recognised as ‘Capital Reserve’ and shown under

the head ‘Reserves and Surplus’ in the consolidated financial statements.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries is identified and presented in the consolidated balance sheet separately within
equity.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries consists of:

(a) The amount of equity attributable to non-controlling interests at the date on which investment in a subsidiary is made; and
(b) The non-controlling interests share of movements in equity since the date parent subsidiary relationship came into existence.

The profit and other comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests of subsidiaries are shown separately in the statement of profit
and loss and statement of changes in equity.

Upon loss of control, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the sﬁbsidiary, any non- controlling interests and the other components of
equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or de-ficit arising on the loss of control is recognised in the consolidated statement of Profit & Loss. If
the Group retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value at the date that control is lost and the differential
is recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss. Subsequently, it is accounted for as an equity-accounted investee depending on the level of influence

retained.
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Business Combinations

Business combinations, other than common control business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition accounting method as at the date
of the acquisition, which is the date at which control is transferred to the Group. The consideration transferred in the acquisition and the identifiable

assets acquired and liabilities assumed are recognised at fair values on their acquisition date.
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-

controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable assets. Consideration transferred does not include amounts related to settlement of pre-existing

relationships. Such amounts are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, other than those incurred in relation to the issue of debt or equity securities. Any contingent
consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes in the fair value of contingent consideration are

recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Business combinations arising from transfer of interests in entities that are under common control are accounted for based on pooling of interest
method where the assets and liabilities of the acquiree are recorded at their existing carrying values. The identity of reserves of the acquiree is
preserved and the difference between consideration and the face value of the share capital of the acquiree is transferred to capital reserve, which is

shown separately from other capital reserves.

Property, Plant and Equipment (Tangible assets) & Depreciation

Recognition and measurement
Property, Plant and Equipment (“PPE”) are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost

comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition
for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the part will flow

to the group and its cost can be measured reliably. All other expenses on existing PPE, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and
cost of replacing parts are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of PPE are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized. d

Depreciation
Depreciation on PPE is provided on a straight-line basis to allocate their cost, net of their residual value over the estimated useful life of the

respective asset. The Company has estimated the useful lives to depreciate its PPE which is in accordance with those prescribed unider Schedule II of
the The Companies Act ,2013, except vehicles, in whose case the life of the assets has been assessed based on the nature of the asset, the estimated
usage of the asszt. The following are the estimates of the useful lives to depreciate its PPE: The following are the estimates of thz useful lives to

depreciate its PPE:

Particulars Estimated useful life by the Group
Computer Hardware 3-5 Years

Office Equipment 5 Years

Vehicles 5 Years

Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years

Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight line basis over the period of lease of the asset.
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2.09 Intangible assets

2.10

Recognition and measurement
The group’s intangible assets primarily consist of computer softwares, brand & trademark. Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that

the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the group and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible
assets are stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated amortisation and cumulative impairment.

Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software products controlled by the group are
recognised as intangible assets.

Development costs include employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. Capitalised development costs are recorded as
intangible assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is available for use.

Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Intangible assets under development”.

De-recognition
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising

from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Amortisation of intangible assets
Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life. Intangible assets are amortised as per management's

estimate over a period of 3 to 10 years or licence period whichever is earlier. Intangible assets are assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year

end. Costs associated with maintaining software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.

Impairment of non-financial assets
Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the’ carrying amount may not be

recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units - CGU). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the

impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Goodwill on business combinations is disclosed separately on the balance sheet and is not amortised but tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. For the impairment test, goodwill is allocated to the CGU or
groups of CGUs which benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows
that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets. The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price
and their value in use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the future cash flows to their present value based on an appropriate discount factor.
Impairment occurs when the carrying amount of a CGU including the goodwill, exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the CGU.

An impairment loss recognised for goodwill shall not be reversed in a subsequent period.

Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, balances with bank, deposits with bank (with original maturity of three months or less). For the

purposes of presentation in the statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and current account balances with banks that
are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the balance sheet when the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument. The group determines the classification of its financial assets and financial liabilities at initial recognition based on its nature and

characteristics.

Financial assets

i) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit and loss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset

The financial assets include investments in mutual funds, trade and other receivables, loans and advances and cash and bank balances. However,
trade and other receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price.

ii) Subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in the following categories:

» At amortised cost, and
« At fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), and
* At fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

« The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset for collecting contractual cash flows, and

« Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost
Financial assets at amortised cost include loans receivable, and other financial assets that are held with the objective of collecting contractual cash

flows. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate (EIR). The effective interest rate (EIR) amortisation is included in interest income in the statement of profit and loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets® cash flows represent solely

payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive income
(“OCI"), except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from
equity to the Statement of profit and loss and recognised in other gains/(losses) (net). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other

income using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Fair value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit and loss (‘FVTPL’).

iii) Reclassifications
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period in which the group changes its business model for

managing financial assets.
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iv) Impairment
The provision for credit risks, which is recognized in accordance with the expected credit loss method specified by Ind AS 109 and in accordance

with uniform standards applied, encompasses all financial assets measured at amortised cost. The calculation of the provision for credit risks

generally takes into account the exposure at default, the probability of default and the loss given default.
Financial assets are subject to credit risks, which are taken into account by recognising the amount of the expected loss; such allowances are

recognised for both financial assets with objective evidence of impairment and non-impaired financial assets.

The general approach is used for financial assets measured at amortised cost on initial recognition. Financial assets are broken down into three stages
in the general approach.

Stage I consists of financial assets that are being recognised for the first time or that have not demonstrated any significant increase in probability of
default since initial recognition. In this stage, the model requires the calculation of an expected credit loss for the next twelve months,

Stage 2 consists of financial assets for which there is a significant increase in credit risk. The group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset
has increased significantly if it is more than 30 days past due.

Stage 3 Financial assets demonstrating objective indications of impairment.are allocated to satge 3. The group assumes that the financial asset is
credit impaired if it is more than 90 days past due.

In stage 2 and 3, an expected credit loss is calculated for the entire remaining maturity of the asset.

The group considers a financial asset to be in default when :
- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the group in full or in part, without recourse by the group to actions such as realising

security (if any is held): or
~ the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

Both historical information, such as average historical default probabilities for each portfolio, and forward-looking information is used to determine
the measurement parameters for calculating the provision for credit risks.

Impairment arises in a number of situations, such as delayed payment over a certain period, the initiation of enforcement measures, the threat of
insolvency or over indebtedness, application for or the initiation of insolvency proceedings, or the failure of restructuring measures.

Reviews are regularly carried out to ensure that the allowaiices are appropriate. Uncollectible loans or receivables that are already subject to a
workout process and for which all collateral has been recovered and all further options for recovering the loan or receivable have been exhausted are
written off directly. Any valuation allowances previously recognised are utilised. Income subsequently collected in connection with loans or

receivables already written off is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Loans are reported in the balance sheet at the net off Expected Credit Loss (ECT.) provision

Measurement of ECL
The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

The Probability of Default (PD) is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time
over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio.

The Exposure at Default (EAD) is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account expected changes in the exposure after the
reporting date of repayments of principal and interest.

The Loss Given Default (LGD) is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It is usually

expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

When estimating the ECL, the group adds a management override to account for stressed scenarios which are then reviewed on a periodic basis.
This takes into account the expected inherent risk for different segments in the portfolio and the macro economic environment. The assurptions are
periodically validated and modified as appropriate.

Impairment losses and releases are accounted for and disclosed separately from modificatinn losses or gains that are accounted for as an adjustment
of the financial asset’s gross carrying value.
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v) Write - offs

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety when the group has no reasonable expectations of recovery. This is generally the
case when the group detenmines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts. If the amount to be written off is greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the difference is first treated as an addition to the allowance
that is then applied against the gross carrying amount. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to impairment of financial instruments in the statement
of profit and loss. However, financial assets that are written off may be subject to enforcement activities to comply with the group's procedures for

recovery of amounts due.

2.12.B Financial liabilities

i) Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of financial liabilities classified at amortised cost, net of directly

attributable transaction costs. The financial liabilities include trade and other payables, term loans and borrowings, lease liabilities etc.

ii) Subsequent measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and

losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate (EIR)
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate (EIR). The effective interest rate (EIR) amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

2.12.C De-recognition, Modification and Transfer
Financial Asset
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primary derecognised when ;
- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
- the group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under as 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset; or (b) the group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the

asset.

When the group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has exitered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to
what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the group's continuing
involvement. In that case, the group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis

that reflects the rights and obligations that the group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the group could be required to repay.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the
asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OCI is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

If the termis of a financial assets are modified, the group evaluates whether the cash flow of the modified asset are substantially different. If the cash
flows are $ubstantially different, then the contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case,
the original financial asset is derecognised and a new financial asset is recognised at fair value.

If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortised cost are not substantially different, then the modification does not result in derecognition
of the financial asset. In this case, the group recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset as the present value of the renegotiated or
modified contractual cashflows that are discounted at the financial asset's origi.nal effective interest rate and recognises the amount arising from
adjusting the gross carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in the the statement of profit and loss. Any costs or fees incurred adjust the
carrying amount of modified financial asset and are amortised over the remaining term of the modified financial asset. If such a modification is
carried out because of financial difficulties of the borrower, then the gain or loss is presented together with impairment losses, in other cases, it is

presented as interest income.
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Financial Liability
The group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire.

The group derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different. In this
case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial labilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance sheet, if there is currently enforceable legal right to

offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,

Fair value measurement
The group's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values for

significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments.

financial instruments. The management regularly reviews

‘When measuring the fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability, the group uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are
categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques are as follows :

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (ie. as price) or indirectly (i.e.

derived from prices).
Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire

measurement.

The group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Share capital
An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities. Incremental costs

directly attributable to the issuance of new equity shares are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the group has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is probable fhat the outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and when a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are

measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future events or present obligations where the
transfer of economic benefits is not probable or cannot be reliably measured. Contingent liabilities are disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow

of resources embodying economic benefit is remote.

Capital commitments includes the amount of purchase order issued to parties for completion of assets, provisions, contingent liability and

commitments are reviewd at balance sheet date.
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Revenue and Expense Recognition

A. Interest income
Interest income is presented in the statement of profit and loss includes interest on financial assets measured at amortised cost calculated on an

effective interest basis. Fee income and expense that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset are included in the effective interest
rate computation. The amortization of income and expenses for financial assets under EIR approach is done on a systematic basis that exactly

discounts estimated future cash flows of the financial assets through the expected life of the assets.

The interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of nop-credit impaired financial assets. (i.. at the amortised cost
of the financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance). For credit-impaired financial assets the interest income is calculated
applying the EIR to the amortised cost of the credit-impaired financial asset (i.e. the gross carrying amount less the allowances for ECLs).

B. Commission and fee income
Commissions earned by the group which are not directly attributable to disbursal of loans are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as and

when incurred.

Fee and commission income include fees other than those that are an integral part of EIR. The group recognises the fee and commission income in
accordance with the terms of the relevant contracts / agreement and when it is probable that the group will collect the consideration.

C. Profit or loss earned on sale of investments is recognised on trade date basis, determined based on the weighted average cost of the investments
sold.

D. Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when:
« the right to receive dividend is established which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend,

* it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and
* amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

E. Interest expenses
Interest expense is presented in the statement of profit and loss includes interest on liabilities measured at amortised cost calculated on an effective

interest basis. Fee and borrowing costs that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial liability are included in the effective interest rate
computation. The amortization of expenses for financial liabilities under EIR approach is done on a systematic basis that exactly discounts estimated
future cash flows of the financial liabilities through the expected life of the financial liabilities. Other borrowing costs are recognised as expense in

the period in which they are incurred.

F. Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds including the ancillary cost are amortised and accounted as interest expense

using the EIR method.
Other borrowing costs are recognised as expense ia the period in which they are incurred.

Emplovee Benefits
i) Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits in respect of salaries and wages, including non-monetary benefits are recognised as an expense at the undiscounted

amount in the statement of profit and loss for the year in which the related service is rendered.

ii) Defined Contribution Plan
The group's contribution paid/payable during the year towards Provident and other funds is charged to the statement of profit and loss in the year in

which employee renders the related service.

iii) Measurement of defined benefit obligations

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit

obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each financial year end.

The parameter most subject to change is the disrount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the actuary considers the interest rates of

government bonds.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic
changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates.

The group has an obligation towards gratuity, a non funded defined benefit plan covering eligible employees. Vesting for gratuity occurs upon

completion of five years of service.
Details of the unfunded defined benefit plans for its employees are given in note 36 which is as certified by the actuary using projected unit credit

method.
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iv) Compensated Absences
Eligible employees of the group are entitled to compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in nature. The expected

cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation using projected unit credit method for the unused entitlement that
has accumulated as at the balance sheet date.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit and loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for
events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number

of equity shares outstanding without a corresponding change in resources.
Fut (he puipuse of valvulating diluted canings per share, the net profit and loss for the period attributable to cquity sharcholders and tho weighted

average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares which may involve issue of
equity shares. The calculation of diluted earnings per share does not assume conversion, exercise, or other issue of potential ordinary shares that

would have an anti-dilutive effect on earnings per share.

Income Taxes
Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items

directly recognized in equity or in OCIL.

Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the

taxation authorities using the tax rates and tax laws that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and applicable for the period.
Current tax items in correlation to the underlying transaction relating to OCI and equity are recognized in OCI and in equity respectively.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

The group offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Deferred income tax
Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for deductible and

taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements, except when the
deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and
affects neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred tax assets are recognlzed for deductible remporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax vredits and any unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and (he cany forward uf unused tax

credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off deferred tax assets against deferred tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly known as Pyxis Holdings Limited)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

2.19 Leases

2.20

2.31

The group’s lease assets primarily consist of leases for office premises. The group assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a
contract, A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the group assesses whether:

(i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset
(ii) the group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and
(iii) the group has the right to direct the use of the asset,

At the date of commencement of the lease, the group recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease
arrangements in which it is a lessee. Short term leases (lease term of twelve months or less) and low value leases are recagnized as an operating

expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities
includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made
at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the lower of the lease term and useful life of the

underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases.
Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the group changes its assessment if whether it will

exercise an extension or a termination option.
Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Share Based Payments

The grant date fair value of equity-settled share-based payment awards/options granted to employee is recognised as an employee benefit expense,
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The fair value of the
options at the grant date is calculated on the basis of Black Scholes Model. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of
awards/options for which the related service are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the

number of awards/options that meet the related service at vesting period.

Segment Reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker (CODM).
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GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly known as Pyxis Holdings Limited)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amount Rs. in Lakh)

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Note 4: Loans from financing activity
Secured, considered good

Housing loan 2,73,772.58 1,20,134.88
Non-housing loan 1,88,703.33 47,888.21
Unsecured, considered good
Non-housing loan 8,151.31 3,069.93
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (2,124.95) (719.74)
4,68,502.27 1,70,373.28
Note 5: Other financial assets
Security Deposits 365.10 217.75
Excessive Interest Spread (EIS) Receivable 627.45 -
992.55 217.75

Note 6: Other non current assets
Prepaid expenses 32.50 0.22

Balance with government authorities 88.70 75.92
121.20 76.14




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly known as Pyxis Holdings Limited)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amount Rs. in Lakh)

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Note 7: Current financial assets - Investments
Investments in Mutual Funds
At fair value through profit and loss
(a) Quoted/ Unquoted
Mutual Fund 19,524.49 4,129.77
19,524.49 4,129.77
Aggregate Amount of Quoted Investments 19,524.49 4,129.77
Market Value of Quoted Investments 19,524.49 4,129.77
Note 8: Cash and Cash Equivalents
(i) Balances with Banks
-Current Accounts 16,561.86 15,770.26
-Certificate of Deposits having maturity less than 3 months 46,966.10 2,497.32
-Deposits having maturity less than 3 months 10,193.62 4,700.95
73,721.58 22,968.53

Note: Short term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

Note 9: Other Bank Balances
(i) Balance with Banks

- In Deposits Account (Refer note below) 4,046.60 0.10
4,046.60 0.10

Note: Balance with Banks in deposit accounts comprises deposits than have an original maturity exceeding 3 months at balance sheet date.

Note 10: Loans from financing activity
Sceured, considered good

Housing loan 6,955.83 5,252.17
Non-housing loan 37,466.82 2,830.74
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Non-housing loan 630.64 169.32
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (156.07) (34.63)
44,897.22 8,217.60
Note 11: Other Financial Assets
Other Receivables 616.88 2.02
Derivative financial Instrument 25.41 -
642.29 2.02
Note 12: Other Current Assets
Advance to Suppliers 287.66 148.55
Prepaid Expenses 269.87 166.09
Employee Advances 2.56 245
Balances with Statutory authorities 371.35 141.92

931.44 459.01




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly known as Pyxis Holdings Limited)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amount Rs. in Lakh)
Note 14: Other Equity

As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022
Amount Amount
Authorised Share Capital
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 50.00 50.00
50.00 50.00
Issued, Subscribed and Fully paid up
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each, fully paid up 24.55 14.81
24.55 14.81
Notes:
a) Reconciliation of Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the Year -
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
No. of Shares Rs. No. of Shares Rs.
Equity Shares
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,48,124 14.81 39,091 3.91
Issued during the year 97,372 9.74 1,09,033 10.90
Outstanding at the end of the year 2,45,496 24.55 1,48,124 14.81
b) Terms / Rights attached to Shares -

i) Equity Shares
The Company has one class of equity shares. Each equity share entitles the holder to one vote. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible
to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to their shareholding.

¢) Details of Shares held by Holding Entity, Ultimate holding Entity, their subsidiaries and associates -

Name of the Sharehold As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

No. of Shares % held No. of Shares % held
(i) Equity shares held by holding entity:
Godrej Industries Limited 2,14,130 87.23% 1,29,033 87.11%

d) Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company -

Name of the Sharehold As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

No. of Shares "% held No. of Shares % held
Godrej Industries Limited 2,14,130 87.23% 1,29,033 87.11%

¢) There are no equity shares reserved for issue under options and contracts / commitments for the sale of shares / disinvestment.
f) i) The Company has not allotted any shares as fully paid up pursuant to contracts without payment being received in cash; or
ii) Allotted as fully paid up bonus shares: or
iii) Bought back any of its equity shares.
g) There are no calls unpaid on any equity shares.

h) There are no forfeited shares.

i) No shareholding of promoter as on 31st March, 2023 or as on 31st March, 2022




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly known as Pyxis Holdings Limited)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022
Note 14: Other Equity

Securities Premium Reserve 1,59,186.46 80,798.03
Retained Earnings (14,977.91) (7,176.45)
Employee Stock Grants Outstanding 24.09 0.05
Special Reserve 1,162.80 402.37
Treasury Shares (0.28) (0.28)
Capital Reserve on account of Amalgamation 84.15 84.15
Mon-Controlling Interest - 2,341,58

1,45,479.31 76,449.45

Nature and Purpose of Reserves
Securities Premium Reserve
The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium Reserve. This Reserve can be used only for the

purposes specified in the Companies Act, 2013.

Retained Earnings

Retained Earnings are losses incurred of the group incurred till date.

On March 31, 2023, the GCL acquired the balance 5% of voting interests in its following subsidiary GHFL & GFL from the non-controlling interest.
Since the group already had control over these subsidiaries through its ownership of 95% shares, the acquistion of remianing 5% will not result in
changes in goodwill. As per Ind AS 110, When the proportion of the equity held by non-controlling interests changes, an entity shall adjust the
carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. The entity shall
recognise directly in equity any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received, and attribute it to the owners of the parent. Accordingly, the differential is adjusted in retained earnings in accordance

with Ind AS 110.

Employee Stock Grants Outstanding
The fair value of the equity-settled share based payment transactions with employees is recognised in Profit and Loss with the corresponding credit to

employee stock grants outstanding account

Special Reserve
Reserve created under section 451C of RBI Act, 1934 & 29C of NHB Act.

Capital Reserve
During amalgamation, the excess of net assets taken, over the cost of consideration paid is treated as reserve. The utilisation will be as per the

requirements of Companies Act, 2013




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly known as Pyxis Holdings Limited)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amount Rs. in Lakh)

As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022
Note 15: Non-current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings
Secured Borrowings
Term Loan from Banks (Refer Note below) 3,69,537.29 1,09,839.98
Non-convertible debentures 39,919.11 -
4,09,456.40 1,09,839.98

Security :

Loans taken from a banks are secured by first ranking pari passu charge with a minimum asset cover on standard receivables of the borrower,
both present and future, however dard receivable excludes receivables which are / or will be exclusively charged to National Housing
Butk (WHB). Thiete is alsy Mst tanking pai passu cliagge on cash and asl eyuivalents of the bunower, Lol pesent and future, o the extent
required to make up any shortfall in the stipufated security cover over the standard receivables.

The quarterly returns/statements of current assets filed by the Company with the banks are in agreement with the books of accounts.

Terms of Repayment : Refer note 19c for repayment terms of borrowing

As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022
Note 16: Non-current Financial Liabilities - Lease
Lease Liabilities 1,600.67 1,168.71
Deferred Lease Rental - -
1,600.67 1,168.71
Note 17: Non-current Provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity 134.00 83.75
Comp d leave ab 34.84 31.26
168.84 115.01
Note 18: Curreat Financial Liabilities - Borrowings
Secured
Secured Term Loan from Banks 9,279.07 15,501.57
Loan Repayable on Demand from Banks 3,266.22 5,000.00
Current Maturities of Long Term Loan from Banks 38,340.17 14,361.82
Non-convertible debentures 1,114.50 -
Unsecured
Commercial Paper 29,810.96 9,921.18
81,810.92 44,784.57
Security :

Term loan taken from a bank is secured by first ranking pari passu charge with a minimum asset cover on standard receivables of the
borrower, both present and future, however standard regeivable excludes receivables which are / or will be exclusively charged to National
Housing Bank (NHB). There is also first ranking pari passu charge on cash and cash equivalents of the borrower, both present and future, to
the extent required to make up any shortfall in the stipulated security cover over the standard receivables.

The quarterly returns/statements of current assets filed by the Company with the banks are in agreement with the books of accounts.

Terms of Repayment : Refer note 19¢ for repayment terms of borrowing




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly knowa as Pyxis Holdings Limited)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022
Note 19: Current Financial Liabilities - Lease
Lease Liabilities 663.62 415.41
663.62 415.41
Note 20: Current Financial Liabilities - Others
Bank Book credit balance 7,961.06 6,959.73
Payable to Employees 1,550.52 1,211.77
EIS Payable 435,97 -
Liability for Exponoos 12,89 11.73
Capital vendor for Intangible 119.24 -
10,089.68 8,183.22
Note 21: Current Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables
(i) Trade Payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprise and small
enterprises 45.95 25.66
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than small
enterprises and micro enterprises 2,812.43 2,018.54
2,858.38 2,044.20

Micro and Small Enterprises Disclosure
During the year micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED
Act) have been identified on the basis of the information available with the Group. The disclosures pursuant to MSMED Act based on the

books of account are as under:

As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2023 2022

() The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the

end of the accounting year/period;

(b) The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at

the end of the accounting year/period;

(c) The amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act,
2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier
beyond the appointed day during each accounting year/period

4595 25.66

(d) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under
the MSMED Act, 2006,

(e} The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end
of accounting year/period

(f) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the
succeeding year, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23.

Disclosure of outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprise under Trade Payables is based on the information available with the Company
regarding the status of the suppliers as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. There is no
undisputed amount overdue during the year ended and as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises on
account of principal or interest.




Trade payables due for payment

As at March 31, 2023

GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly known as Pyxis Holdings Limited)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amount in lakhs)

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Not Due Less than 1 year 1-2 vears 2-3 years More than 3 vears Total
(i MSME - 45.95 - - - 45.95
(i) Others 13.23 4.59 6.69 . - 24.51
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - = - -
As at March 31,2022
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Not Due Less than | year 1-2 vears 2-3 vears More than 3 vears Tatal
(i) MSME - 25.66 - - - 25.66
(i) Others 2.00 70.90 - - - 72.90
{iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2021
Trade Payables as per ageing schedule above 70.46 98.56
Add: Trade Payables includes Unbilled dues 2,787.92 1,945.64
Total Trade Pavables as per Note 21 2.858.38 2,044.20
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022
Note 22: Other Current Liabilities
Statutory Dues Payable 630.32 414.45
Other Liabilities - -
630.32 414.45
Note 23: Current Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits
Provision for Gratuity 0.53 0.30
Provision for Compensated Absenses 15.36 14.08
14.38

15.89




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly known as Pyxis Holdings Limited)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amount Rs, in Lakh)

Note 19¢c: Repayment terms of horrowings As at Mareh 31, 2073
Due within 1 year Due 1 to 3 years More than 3 years Total
Original maturity of .
miginal matitgitylofloan,(No. gdiys) B ook Amount Wogof Amount i Amount Amount
Instaliments Instaliments Installments

Monthly
Upto 365 Days = = = - @ = =
366 to 1095 Days ~ % = = - - -
More than 1095 Days 12 667 - - - - 667
Quarterly
Upto 365 Days - . - - - 5 =
366 to 1095 Days 22 7,792 4 2,292 - - 10,083
More than 1095 Days 64 29,204 165 | 1,23,420.73 187 2,24,357 3,76,982
On maturity (bullet)
Upto 365 Days 4 12,266 - - - - 12,266
366 to 1095 Days - - - - - - -
More than 1095 Days - - 2 20,000 1 20,000 40,000
Interest accrued and impact of EIR 711.02 (430.89) 545
TOTAL 102.00 50,639.66 171.00 | 1,45,281.51 188.00 | 2,44,356.89 | 4.40,542.85
Interest rates range from 5.60% p.a. to 9.32% p.a.
Repayment terms of Commercial paper As at March 31, 2023
Original maturity of loan (No. of days) Due within 1 year Due 1 to 3 years More than 3 years Total
Monthly
Upto 365 Days 28,728.39 - - 238,728.39
Interest accrued and impact of EIR 1,082.57 - - 1,082.57
TOTAL 29,810.96 - - 29,810.96

Interest rates range from 4.0% p.a. to 8.15% p.a.

Face value per commercial paper is Rs. 30800 lakhs




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly known as Pyxis Holdings Limited)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Repayment terms of Borrowings As at March 31, 2022
Due within 1 year Due 1 to 3 years More than 3 years Total
Original maturity of loan (No. of days) No. of Amount No. of Amount No. of Amount e
Installments Installments Installments

Monthly
Upto 365 Days - - - - - - -
366 to 1095 Days 12 666.67 12 666.67 - - 1,333.34
More than 1095 Days - - - - - . -
Quarterly
Upto 365 Days - . - - - - -
366 to 1095 Days 21 6,291.67 26 10,083.33 - - 16,375.00
More than 1095 Days 22 7,300.00 77|  29,595.83 104|  49,604.17 86,500.00
On maturity (bullet)
Upto 365 Days 3 8,500.00 - - - - 8,500.00
366 to 1095 Days 3 12,000.00 - - - - 12,000.00
More than 1095 Days - - 2| 20,000.00 - - 20,000.00
Interest accrued and impact of EIR 4.97)
TOTAL 61.00 34,758.34 117.00 60,345.83 104.00 49,604.17 | 1,44,703.37

Interest rates range from 5.60% p.a. to 7.35% p.a.

Repayment terms of Commercial paper As at March 31, 2022

Original maturity of loan (No. of days) Due within 1 year Due 1 to 3 years More than 3 years Total
Monthly

Upto 365 Days 9,847.75 - - 9,847.75
Interest accrued and impact of EIR 73.43 - - 73.43
TOTAL 9,994.61 - - 9,921.18

Interest rates range from 4.2% p.a. to 4.30% p.a.

Face value per commercial paper is Rs. 10,000 lakhs




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly known as Pyxis Holdings Limited)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amount Rs. in Lakh) .

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Note 24: Revenue from Operations
Fees income 487.57 15.10
Interest income on loans from financing activity 27,927.55 3,894.33
Interest Income PTC Investment - -
28,415.12 3,909.43
Note 25: Other Income
Interest Income on deposits with banks 183.84 95.16
Interest Income on Security Deposits 15.98 6.57
Net gain on sale or fair valuation of investments 1,362.63 195.53
Miscellaneous Income 2.38 266.45
Gain on lease modification - 176.23
Interest Income on Investments measured at Amortised Cost 301.40 73.00
Interest on I.T. Refund 12.37 0.52
Service Charges 3,679.69 763.37
5,558.29 1,576.83
Note 25a: Net gain on de-recognition of financial assets at amortized cost
Net gain on de-recognition of financial assets at amortized cost 717.40 -
717.40 -
Note 26: Employee Benefits Expenses
Salaries and Wages 9,217.80 4,892.22
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 304.47 131.25
Expenses on Employee Stock Option Scheme 24.04 0.04
Staff Welfare Expenses 463.47 481.78
10,009.78 5,505.29

Salaries, bonus and allowances net of salary cost capitalised to Intangible Assets Under Development during the

current year Rs.108 lakhs (Previous Year: Rs. 402 lakhs )

Note 27: Finance Costs

Interest on Borrowings 18,888.14 2,715.12
Interest on Lease Liabilities 148.90 66.69
Other Borrowing Costs 109.30 73.02
19,146.34 2,854.83
Note 28: Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 289.34 95.48
Amortisation on Intangible Assets 944.59 363.25
Depreciation on Rights to Use 663.38 268.41
1,897.31 727.14




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly known as Pyxis Holdings Limited)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amount Rs. in Lakh)

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Note 29: Other Expenses
Electricity Expenses 62.21 18.43
Rent 115.93 30.68
Repair and Maintenance- Others 140.87/ 38.81
Rates and Taxes 19.72 10.09
Legal and Professional Fees 748.54 696.27
Recruitment Expenses 313.79 89.88
Membership and Subscription Fees 137.18 7.68
Housekeeping Expenses 221.34 120.84
Office Expenses 74.08 8.01
Computer Expenses 988.26 541.80
Printing and Stationery 141.22 35.98
Postage & courier 18.98 4.55
Communication Expenses 85.05 24.16
Travelling and Conveyance 434.77 95.08
Commission and Brokerage 32.18 9.05
Allowance for expected credit loss (net) 1,526.65 566.15
Loan sourcing cost 997.74 175.37
Advertisement and Sales Promotion expenses 562.27 152.92
Payments to Auditors 48.67 27.99
Director's sitting fee 54.41 44.69
Miscellaneous Expenses * 15.17 3.21
6,739.03 2,701.64
Note 29(a): Auditors' fees and expenses
Payments to auditor
a) Audit fees 35.88 20.52
b) Limited review 491
¢) Certification 1.42 2.67
d) Other services 1.01 0.45
e) Tax audit fee 5.45 4.36
48.67 27.99
* Auditor's remuneration is part of other expenses
Note 30: Earnings Per Share
Net (Loss) for Computation of Basic and Diluted
Earnings per Share (A) (3,115.76) (6,298.67)
Number of Equity Shares at the beginning of the Year 1,48,124 39,091
Add: Shares issued during the Year 97,372 1,09,033
Number of Equity Shares at the end of the Year 2,45,496 1,48,124
Weighted Average Number of Shares B) 2,16,056 93,347
Face Value of Share in Rs. 10 10

Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share (A)/(B) (1,442.10) (6,747.60)




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly known as Pyxis Holdings Limited)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 31: Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Note*

(Amount Rs. in Lakh)

As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2023 2022
(i) Contingent Liabilities shall be classified as-
(a) claims against the Group not acknowledged as debt - Disputed Income tax i 11.32
liability :
(b) guarantees excluding financial guarantees; and - -
(c) other money for which the Group is contingently liable. 12.20 -
(i) Commitments shall he classified as- =
(a) estlmated. amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account 924.55 538.96
and not provided for;
(b) uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid; and - =
(c) other commitments - Undisbursed commitments in respect of the loan 2,58,906.91 1,40,019.09

There are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund as at March 31, 2023

and as at March, 2022

Note 32: Information on Subisidiaries
The subsidiary Companies considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements are :

Place of Business/ Percentage of Holding
Name of the Company Country of As at March 31, As at March 31,
Incorporation 2023 2022
Subsidiaries of Godrej Capital Limited
Godrej Housing Finance Limited India 100% 95%
Godrej Finance Limited India 100% 95%
Godrej Capital Employee Stock OptionTrust India 100% 100%

Note 33: Impariment of Goodwill
The Group has recognised goodwill of Rs. 29,450 lacs for the cash generating unit (CGU) of housing financial services.
The recoverable amount of the CGU of housing financial services is determined on the basis of its value-in-use

calculations. The management has used five year period for calculating value in use.

There is no impairment of goodwill during the year ended March 31, 2023.




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly known as Pyxis Holdings Limited)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Amount Rs. in Lakh)
Note 34: Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 12 “Income Taxes”
A. Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current tax expense
Current period 537.74 -
Changes in estimated related to prior years 10.12 0.59
Total current tax expense (A) 547.86 0.59
Deferred income tax liability / (asset), net
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (537.74) =
Deferred tax expense (B) (537.74) -
Total tax expense for the year (A) + (B) 10.12 0.59
B. Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
(i) Remeasurement gains and (losses) on defined benefit obligations 3.08 4.56
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss (7.07) -
Total (a) (3.99) 4.56
(b) Items that will be reclassified to profit and loss - -
Total (b) - -
Total (a+b) (3.99) 4.56 .

C. Reconciliation of effective tax rate For the year ended March 31, 2023 For the year ended March 31, 2022

Amount %age Amount %age
Loss before tax as per Statement of profit and loss (3,101.65) (6,302.64)
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate (780.62) 25.17% (1,586,25) 25.17%
Tax effect of:
Non-deductible expenses (214.88) 6.93% - 0.00%
Difference in tax rate on account of capital gains - 0.00% - 0.00%
Changes in estimated related to prior years 10.12 0.59
Deferred not created on unaborbed business loss 995.50 -32.10% 1,586.25 -25.17%
Total tax expense 10.12 -0.33% 0.59 -0.01% .
D. Deferred tax balances
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Deferred Tax Assets (DTA)
Employee benefits 1,093.14 =
Provision against standard loans 525.67 =
Others 18.53 -
Leases 41.26 -
Business loss (restricted to) 463.29 3,368.96
Unabsorbed Depreciation 376.80 -
DTA restricted to 2,518.69 396.30
Deferred Tax Liabilities (DTL)
Unrealised gain on mutual fund (3.59) (2.48)
WDV of tangible and intangible assets (640) (393.82)
Unamortised Borrowing Cost under EIR Basis (222) -
Unamortised Loan Acquistion Cost under EIR Basis (1,115) -
Leases (6.89) -
Total DTL (1,988.02) (396.30)

Deferred tax asset on unabsorbed depreciation, business losses, EIR impact on financial instruments at amortised cost, lease related adjustments, unrealised net gain/(loss)
on fair value changes, disallowances under w/s 43B of Income Tax Act, 1961 and others are not created on conservative basis but it restricted to current period tax.

D. Tax balances

Particulars

Current tax assets (net)
Advance Income Taxes (net)

Current tax labilities (Net)

Total

Total

Asat As at
355.03 259.92
355.03 259.92
199.98 -

199.98




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly known as Pyxis Holdings Limited)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 35: Leases

Information about leases for which the Company is a lessee is presented below:

(i) Right of use Asset

(Amount Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2023 2022
Cost
Balance at beginning of the period 2,239.04 -
Acquisition and Business Combination 1,862.28
Additions 1,271.47 1,045.89
Disposals/ Other Adjustments - (669.13)
Balance at e¢nd of the period 3.510.51 2,239.04
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Balance at beginning of the period 637.96 -
Acquisition and Business Combination - 369.56
Depreciation 663.38 444.63
Disposals/ Other Adjustments - (176.23)
Balance at end of the period 1,301.34 637.96
Carrying Amounts 2,209.17 1,601.08
(ii) Movement in Lease liabilities
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022
Opening lease liabilities 1,584.12 -
Add: Acquisition and Business Combination - 1,862.28
Add: Addition for new leases 1,271.47 1,045.89
Less: Reduction for termination / closure - (669.13)
Add: Interest on lease liabilities 148.90 66.69
Add: Lease adjustment - (28.19)
Less: Lease payments (740.20) (693.42)
Closing lease liabilities 2,264.29 1,584.12

(iii) Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended March 31, | ended March 31,
2023 2022
(a) Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 663.38 268.41
(b) Interest on lease liabilities 148.90 66.69
(c) Expense relating to short-term leases 115.92 17.97
Total 928.20 353.07
(iv) The total cash outflow for leases for the year:
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March 31, | ended March 31,
2023 2022
Total cash outflow on leases 706.40 233.55
4. Maturity analysis (undiscounted amounts)
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2023 2022
Less than one year 791.74 506.24
One to five years 1,746.78 1,274.53
More than five years - -
Total undiscounted lease liabilities 2,538.52 1,780.77
Lease liabilities included in the statement of financial position 2,538.52 1,780.77
Current 663.62 415.41
Non-Current 1,600.67 1,168.71
Weighted average effectvie interest rate % 6.5% to 7% 6.5% to 7%

The above amounts includes principal & interest




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly known as Pyxis Holdings Limited)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount Rs. in Lakh)

Note 36: Employee bencfits - Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 'Employee Benefits'

Note (a) PDefined contribution plans
The Group makes Provident fund contributions which are defined contribution plans for qualifying employees. Under the schemes, the Group is

required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits

The Group has recognised the following amounts in the statement of profit and loss towards contribution to defined contribution plans which are
included under contribution to provident and other funds: "

For the year For the year
ended March 31, ended March 31,
g 2023 2022
Provident fund charge 304.47 131.25

Note (b) Defined Benefit Plan
I  The Group has an obligation towards gratuity, a non funded defined benefit plan covering eligible employees. Vesting for gratuity occurs upon
completion of five years of service. Details of the unfunded post retirement benefit plans for its employees are given below which is as certified by

the actuary.
Gratuity Disclosure Statement as Per Indian Accounting Standard 19 (Ind AS 19) as below.

a) Changes in Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation

For the year For the year
ended March 31, ended March 31,
2023 2022

Present Value of Benefit Obligation on Acquisition and Business Combination 84.04 60.48

Current Service Cost 47.65 22.96

Past service cost - -

Interest Expense/(Income) 5.12 2.30

Liability transferred in 59.11 2.86

Liability transferred out (58.31) -

Settlement Cost (Credit)/Cost - -

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on obligations - due to experience 0.66 (4.56)

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on obligations - due to change in demographic assumptions (5.55)

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on obligations - due to change in financial assumptions 1.81

Experience (gains)/losses - -

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the End of the year 134.53 84.04

Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets, beginning of the year - &
Expected return on Plan Assets - -
Contributions - -
Benefits paid - -
Actuarial Gain (loss) on plan assets = -

Fair value of plan assets, end of the year - -

b) Amount recognized in the balance sheet consists of: As at March 31,  As at March 31,
2023 2022

Present value of defined benefit obligation 134.53 84.04

Fair value of plan assets - =

Net liability 134.53 84.04

¢) The amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss are as follows: For the year For the year
ended March 31, ended March 31,
2023 2022
Service Cost

Current service cost 47.65 22.96

Past service cost - -

Total Service cost (i) 47.65 22.96

Net interest cost

Interest expense on DBO 5.12 2.30

Interest expense / (income) on plan assets - =

Total Interest cost (if) 5.12 2.30

Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit and Loss (iii) - (i + ii) 52.77 25.26
Total remeasurement in other comprehensive income (OCI) @iv) (3.08) (4.56)

Total Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit and loss and OCI (v) = (iii + iv) 49.69 20.70




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly known as Pyxis Holdings Limited)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount Rs. in Lakh)

d) The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Group’s plans are shown below

With the objective of presenting the plan assets and plan liabilitics of the defined benefits plans and post retirement medical benefits at their fair
value ot the balance sheet, dssumptions under d AS 19 are set by reference to market conditions 4 the valuadon date.
As at March 31, 2023

Particulars

Discount rate 7.2%to 7.29%

Salary growth rate ' 10.00%

Employee attrition rate 24% to 34%

Mortality rate during employment Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14)

Expected average remaining working lives of emplovees 2 to 3 years

¢) Impact on defined benefit obligation - Sensitivity Analysis As at March 31, 2023

Particulars Increase Decrease
i)  Discount rate (1% movement) (5.20) 5.58
ii) Change in salary growth rate (1% movement) 5.39 (5.13)
iii) Change in employee attrition rate (1% movement) (3.79) 3.91

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit
credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the benefit obligation as recognised in the

balance sheet.
There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

f) Maturity
The defined benefit obligations shall mature after year end as follows:
Particulars As at March 31,
2022

i) Ist Following Year 0.54
ii) 2nd Following Year 21.15
iii) 3rd Following Year 28.05
iv) 4th Following Year 27.93
v) 5th Following Year 25.00
vi) Sum of Years 6 to 10 60.58
vii) Sum of Years 11 and above 23.51

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 2 to 3 years (previous year - 12 years).

g) Risk Exposure
Gratuity is a defined benefit plan and Company is exposed to the Following Risks:
Interest rate risk: A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the Government Security Rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring
higher provision.
Salary Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an increase
in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability.
Asset Liability Matching Risk: The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Company has to manage pay-out based on pay as you go

basis from own funds.
Mortality risk: Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have any longevity

risk.

Note (c) Impact of Code on Social Security, 2020
The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on social security, 2020 which may impact the contributions by the Group towards Provident Fund and

Gratuity. The effective date from which the changes are applicable is yet to be notified and the rules for quantifying and financial impact are yet to be
determined. The Group will complete its evaluation and will give appropriate impact in the financial statements in the year in which, the code
becomes effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are notified.




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly known as Pyxis Holdings Limited)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount Rs. in Lakh)

Note 37: Share based payments

The Godrej Capital Employee Stack.Option Scheme 2021 (“ESOP Scheme 2021”) of the Company was approved and adopted by its members at ax
Extraordinary General Meeting held:on January 5, 2021. The Scheme is administered by Company's Board of Directors. The Scheme applies to all the
Eligible Employees, who are the permanent employees of the Company or any Subsidiary of the Company, on the date of Grant of Options. The
Compensation Committee of the Company would decide the entitlement of each employee based on his/her performance, level, grade, seniority and such
other parameters as may be decided by the Compensation Committee. The Exercise Price will be as decided by the Compensation Commitee. The Options
granted would vest after twenty one months but not later than fifty seven months from the date of Grant of Options or as may be decided by Compensation
committee. Exercise period is 7 (seven) years from the date of Vesting of Options or such other period as may be decided by the Compensation Committee,
within which the Employee should exercise his right to apply for transfer of Equity Shares of the Company to him pursuant to the Option Vested in him in

accordance with the ESOP Scheme 2021.

Description of the share based payment plans:

The expense recognised for employee services received during the year / period is shown in the following table:

For the year ended March 31, 2022

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2023
Expenses arising from equity-settled share-based payment 24.04 0.04
Total 24.04 0.04

Movements during the year

The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise price (WAEP) of, and movement in, share options during the year / period:

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2023 For the year ended March 31, 2022
Number WAEP Number WAEP
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 2,759 10 2,378 10
Granted during the year - - 416 10
Lapsed during the year 122 10 35 10
OQutstanding at the end of the year 2.637 10 2,759 10

The weighted average fair values of the options Rs. 4.29. The stock price of the options is Rs. 10.

The fair value of each option is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes model with the following assumptions:

Year ended For the year ended March 31, 2023 For the year ended March 31, 2022
Share price Rs 4.29 Rs 4.29
Risk free interest rate 7.00% 7.00%
Fair Value of Optics 09to 1.6 09to0 1.6
Volatility 42.70% 42.70%
Time to Maturity 5 years 6 years
Exercise price Rs. 10 Rs. 10

Expected Volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the comparable Company's share price over the effects of non-
transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following expiry date and exercise prices:

: . . March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
bt Expiry date Eercissjprice Share Options Share Options
January 29, 2021 October 28, 2029 10 319.00 328.00
February 3, 2021 November 2, 2029 10 229.00 251.00
Febraury 11, 2021 November 10, 2029 10 9.00 9.00
May 10, 2021 February 5, 2030 10 61.00 61.00
June 22, 2021 March 20, 2030 10 43.00 43.00
January 29, 2021 October 28, 2030 10 331.00 340.00
February 3, 2021 November 2, 2030 10 232.00 254.00
Febraury 11, 2021 November 10, 2030 10 9.00 9.00
May 10, 2021 February 5, 2031 10 63.00 63.00
June 22, 2021 March 20, 2031 10 45.00 45.00
January 29, 2021 October 28, 2031 10 312.00 320.00
February 3, 2021 November 2, 2031 10 215.00 236.00
Febraury 11, 2021 November 10, 2031 10 8.00 8.00
May 10, 2021 February 5, 2032 10 58.00 58.00
June 22,2021 March 20, 2032 10 42.00 42.00
January 29, 2021 October 28, 2032 10 319.00 328.00
February 3, 2021 November 2, 2032 10 229.00 251.00
Febraury 11, 2021 November 10, 2032 10 9.00 9.00
May 10, 2021 February 5, 2033 10 61.00 61.00
June 22, 2021 March 20, 2033 10 _—43.00 43.00

/,{pzm’,rj?\‘\ 2,759.00




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly known as Pyxis Holdings Limited)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount Rs. in Lakh)

B) ESOP Scheme 2022 |
The Godrej Capital Employee: Stock Option Scheme 2022 (“ESOP Scheme 2022”) of the Company was approved and adopted by its members at an Anuual |

General Meeting held on June 1, 2022. The Scheme is administered by Company's Board of Directors. The Scheme applies to all the Eligible Employees,
who are the permanent employees of the Company or any Subsidiary of the Company, on the date of Grant of Options. The Compensation Committee of
the Company would decide the entitlement of each employee based on his/her performance, level, grade, seniority and such other parameters as may be
decided by the Compensation Committee. The Exercise Price for each Option will be will be determined by the Board.The Options granted would vest afier
a minimum period of twenty four months which may be extended to thirty six months but not later than seventy two months from the date of Grant of
Options or as may be decided by Compensation committee. Exercise period is 7 (seven) years from the date of Vesting of Options or such other period as
may be decided by the Board, within which the Employee should exercise his right to apply for transfer of Equity Shares of the Company to him pursuant to
the Option Vested in him in accordance with the ESOP Scheme 2022.

Movements during the year
The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise price (WAEP) of, and movement in, share options during the year:

Particulars For the year For the year

Number WAEP Number WAEP
Outstanding at the beginning of the year - - N =
Granted during the year 934 10 = =
Lapsed during the year - - - =
|0utstaudlug at the end of the year 934 10 - =

The weighted average fair values of the options granted during the year was Rs. 80,496.49. The weighted average stock price of the options granted
during the year ended March 31, 2023 is Rs.10.

The fair value of each option is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes model with the following assumptions:

Particulars For the year
Share price Rs. 80,496.49
Fair Value of Option Rs. 22,346.12 to Rs. 33,172.25
Risk free interest rate 6.69% to 7.34%
Volatility 20.02% t0 29.33%
Time to Maturity 7 years
Exercise price Rs. 80,496.49
Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following expiry date and exercise prices:

. . . March 31, 2023
Grant Date Expiry date Exercise price Share Options
09 November 2022 30-Jun-31 80,496.49 28
09 November 2022 30-Jun-32 80,496.49 28
09 November 2022 30-Jun-33 80,496.49 27
09 November 2022 30-Jun-34 80,496.49 28
09 November 2022 30-Apr-32 80,496.49 146
09 November 2022 30-Apr-33 80,496.49 146
09 November 2022 30-Apr-34 80,496.49 145
09 November 2022 30-Apr-35 80,496.49 146
09 November 2022 30-Nov-32 80,496.49 28
09 November 2022 30-Nov-33 80,496.49 28
09 November 2022 30-Nov-34 80,496.49 28
09 November 2022 30-Nov-35 80,496.49 28
10 March 2023 28-Feb-33 80.496.49 32
10 March 2023 28-Feb-34 80,496.49 32
10 March 2023 28-Feb-35 80,496.49 32
10 March 2023 29-Feb-36 80,496.49 32
Total 934
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GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly known as Pyxis Holdings Limited)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 39: Related Party Information

a) Names of related parties and description of relationship

Name of related party Nature of relationship

Godrej Industries Limited Holding Company (w.e.f. March 25, 2021)

Godrej Properties Limited ' Companies under Common Ownership

Godrej Investment Advisors Limited Companies under Common Ownership

Godrej Consumer Products Limited Companies under Common Ownership

Godrej One Premises Management Private Limited Companies under Common Ownership

Kunal Karnani CFO (w.e.f 5th August, 2022)

Manish Shah Key Managerial Personnel - Managing Director and CEQO (w.e.f 7th March, 2022)

b) Transactions with related parties

(Amount Rs. in Lakh)

Holding Compan: Key Managerial Personnel -
Sr. No.|Nature of transaction olding “-ompany Director

Companies under Common
Ownership

FY 2022-23 | FY 2021-22 | FY 2022-23 | FY 2021-22

FY 2022-23

FY 2021-22

Transactions with related party
Issue of Share capital & Security Premium 68,500.10 80,917.50 -
Reimbursement of Cost 477.61 6.37 - -
Reimbursement of Cost recovered from 495 -
Expenses paid to - 244,01 - -
Purchase of goods - -

Purchase of Brand logo 245.63 - - -
Remuneration to KMP - - 586.59 347.74

NNV A W N —

Balance Outstanding as on date
Outstanding Balance - Payable 9.42 2.76 - -
2 |Security deposits 133.55 126.61 - -
3 |Outstanding Balance - Receivable 4.90 - - -

—

63.16
6.07

0.25

5.21

3.24

36.65

78.65
0.62

0.62

1.78

G ies under Common

Holding C v Key Managerial Per -

P

& moipNaturelofitrasgiction FY 2022-23 | FY 202122 | ¥Y 2022-23 | FY 202122

FY 2022-23

FY 2021-22

Transacfions with related party

1 |Issue of Share capital & Security Premium
Godrej Industries Limited 68,500.10 80,917.50 - -

L]

Reimbursement of Cost

Godrej Industries Limited 477.61 244.01 - -
Cidrg) One Premises Management Privare Tdmired -

Godrej Properties Limited - - -

3 |Reimbursement of Cost recovered from
Godrej Industries Limited 4.95 6.37 - -
Godrej Properties Limited - - -
Godrej Fund Management and Investment Advisers
Private Limited

4 |Expenses paid to
Godrej Industries Limited - 244.01 -

5  |Purchase of goods
Godrej Consumer Products Limited - - =

6 |Purchase of Brand logo
Godrej Properties Limited = 5 = i

7 |Remuneration to KMP
Short term employee benefit 561.54 325.16
Post employment benefit 25.05 22.58

Balance Outstanding as on date
1 |Outstanding Balance - Payable
Godrej Industries Limited 9.42 2.76 - -
Godrej One Premises Management Private Limited - = -
Godrej Properties Limited - =
Godrej Consumer Products Limited -
2 |Security deposits 133.55 126.61 - >
3 |Outstanding Balance - Receivable
Godrej One Premises Management Private Limited = - b2
Godrej Properties Limited - - =
Godrej Industries Limited 4.90 - B -

112,94
0.20

0.25

245.63

IRTT
19.88

21.90
14.75
78.65

0.62




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly known as Pyxis Holdings Limited)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount Rs. in Lakh)

Note 37: Share based payments

The Godrej Capital Employee Stock Option Scheme 2021 (“ESOP Scheme 2021”) of the Company was approved and adopted by its members at an
Extraordinary General Meeting held on January 5, 2021. The Scheme is administered by Company's Board of Directors. The Scheme applies to all the
Eligible Employees, who are the permanent employees of the Company or any Subsidiary of the Company, on the date of Grant of Options. The
Compensation Committee of the Company would decide the entitlement of each employee based on his/her performance, level, grade, seniority and such
other parameters as may be decided by the Compensation Committee. The Exercise Price will be as decided by the Compensation Commitee. The Options
granted would vest after twenty one months but not later than fifty seven months from the date of Grant of Options or as may be decided by Compensation
committee, Exercise period is 7 (seven) years from the date of Vesting of Options or such other period as may be decided by the Compensation Committee,
within which the Employee should exercise his right to apply for transfer of Equity Shares of the Company to him pursuant to the Option Vested in him in

accordance with the ESOP Scheme 2021.

Description of the share based payment plans:

The expense recognised for employee services received during the year / period is shown in the following table:

For the year ended March 31, 2022

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2023
Expenses arising from equity-settled share-based payment 24.04 0.04
Total 24.04 0.04

Movements during the year

The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise price (WAEP) of, and movement in, share options during the year / period:

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2023 For the year ended March 31, 2022
Number WAEP Number WAEP
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 2,759 10 2,378 10
Granted during the year - - 416 10
Lapsed during the year 122 10 35 10
Outstanding at the end of the year 2,637 10 2,759 10

The weighted average fair values of the options Rs. 4.29. The stock price of the options is Rs. 10.

The fair value of each option is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes model with the following assumptions:

Year ended For the year ended March 31, 2023 For the year ended March 31, 2022
Share price Rs4.29 Rs 4.29
Risk free interest rate 7.00% 7.00%
Fair Value of Option 09t01.6 0910 1.6
Volatility 42.70% 42.70%
Time to Maturity 5 years 6 years
Exercise price Rs. 10 Rs. 10

Expected Volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the comparable Company's share price over the effects of non

transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following expiry date and exercise prices:

. T - March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

grangDate Bxpirycats ELCEciss Prict Share Options Share Options
January 29, 2021 October 28, 2029 10 319.00 328.00
February 3, 2021 November 2, 2029 10 229.00 251.00
Febraury 11, 2021 November 10, 2029 10 9.00 9.00
May 10, 2021 February 5, 2030 10 61.00 61.00
June 22, 2021 March 20, 2030 10 43.00 43.00
January 29, 2021 October 28, 2030 10 331.00 340.00
February 3, 2021 November 2, 2030 10 232.00 254.00
Febraury 11, 2021 November 10, 2030 10 9.00 9.00
May 10, 2021 February 5, 2831 10 63.00 63.00
June 22, 2021 March 20,2031 10 45.00 45.00
January 29, 2021 October 28, 2031 10 312.00 320.00
February 3, 2021 November 2, 2031 10 215.00 236.00
Febraury 11, 2021 November 10, 2031 10 8.00 8.00
May 10,2021 February 5, 2032 10 58.00 58.00
June 22, 2021 March 20, 2032 10 42.00 42.00
January 29, 2021 October 28, 2032 10 319.00 328.00
February 3, 2021 November 2, 2032 10 229.00 251.00
Febraury 11, 2021 November 10, 2032 10 9.00 9.00
May 10, 2021 February 5, 2033 10 61.00 61.00
June 22, 2021 March 20, 2033 10 43.00 43.00

B3 i 2,637.00 2,759.00
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Note 40: Fair Value Measurement

The fair value is the amount at which financial instruments could be sold on fair terms as of the reporting date, Where market prices (e.g. for marketable securmes) were
available, we have used these prices without modification for measuring fair value. If no market prices were available, the fair values for loans/receivables and liabilities were
calculated by discounting using a maturity-matched discount rate appropriate to the risk.

Classification of fi ial assets and financial liabilities:
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of Financial assets and Financial liabilities which are classified as Amortised Cost, Fair value through Profit

and Loss (FVTPL) and Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).

As at March 31,2023 (Amount Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars Carrying Amount Fair Value
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets
Non Current

Loans from financing activity - - 4,68,502.27 4,68,502.27 - - - -
Other Financial Assets . - 992.55 992.55 - - - -
Current
Investments 19,524.49 - - 19,524.49 19,524.49 - - 19,524.49
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 73,721.58 73,721.58 - - - -
Other Bank Balances - - 4,046.60 4,046.60 - - - -
Loans from financing activity - - 44,897.22 44,897.22 - - = -
Other Financial Assets - - 642.29 642.29 2541 - - 25.41
19,524.49 - 5,92,802.51 6,12,327.00 19.549.90 - - 19,549.90

Financial liabilities
Non Current

Borrowings - - 4,09,456.40 4,09,456.40 - - - -
Lease Liabilities - - 1,600.67 1,600.67 - - 1,600.67 1,600.67
Current
Borrowings - - 81,810.92 81,810.92 - - -
Lease Liabilities - - 663.62 663.62 - - 663.62 663.62
Other Financial Liabilities - - 10,089.68 10,089.68 - - - -
Trade Payables - - 2,858.38 2,858.38 - - - -

- - 5,06,479.67 5,06,479.67 - - 2,264.29 2.264.29

As at March 31, 2022 {(Amount Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars Carrying Amount Fair Value
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets
Non Current
Loans from financing activity - - 1,70,373.28 1,70,373.28 - - - -
+"ther Financial Assets - - 217.75 217.75 - - - -
Cairent
Investments 4,129.77 - - 4,129.77 4,129.77 - - 4,129.77
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 22,968.53 22,968.53 - - - -
Other Bank Balances - - 0.10 0.10 - - - -
Loans from financing activity - - 8,217.60 8,217.60 - - - -
QOther Financial Assets - - 2.02 2.02 - - - -

4,129.77 - 2,01,779.28 2,05,909.05 4,129.77 - - 4,129.77
Financial liabilities
Non Current
Borrowings - - 1,09,839.98 1,09,839.98 - - - =
Lease Liabilities - - 1,168.71 1,168.71 - - 1,168.71 1,168.71
Current
Borrowings - - 44,784.57 44,784.57 - - = -
Lease Liabilities - - 41541 415.41 - - 41541 41541
Other Financial Liabilities - - 8,183.22 8,183.22 - - - ]
Trade Payables - - 2.044.20 2,044.20 - - -

- - 1,66,436.09 1,66,436.09 - - 1,584.12 1,584.12

Thr. «&ir value of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, other financial liabilities, trade payables approximate their carrying vz.ie largely due to short term maturities
of wicse instruments.

Financial instruments with fxed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the Group based on parameters such as interest rates and individual credit worthiness of the
counterparty. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken to account for expected losses of these receivables. Accordingly, fair value of such instruments is not materially

different from their carrying amounts.
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Note 40: Fair Value Measurement (Continued)
Measurement of fair values
The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of Financial instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a signicant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a signicant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data.

The following tables show the valuation technigues used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values, as well as the significant unobservable inputs used.

Type Valuatinn Technique

The Group's borrowings are at floating rate of interest and the carrying value of loans approximates their fair value.

Borrowings
Other borrowings which are short-term in nature and hence carrying value approximates their fair value.

Lease Liability Lease liabilities are valued using Level 3 techniques. A change in one or more of the inputs to reasonably possible alternative
assumptions would not change the value significantly.

Loans and Advances Substantially all loans are at floating rate of interest, the carrying value of loans approximates their fair value. ‘

The fair values of investments in mutual funds is based on the net asset value (‘NAV’) as stated by the issuers of these mutual fund units
in the published statements as at Balance Sheet date. NAV represents the price at which the issuer will issue further units of mutual fund
and the price at which issuers will redeem such units from the investors.

Investments in Mutual Funds

There are no transfer between Level 1, 2 and 3, since there are no financial instrutments at fair value under the category.

Note 41: Fi ial Risk Manag t

Fi ial risk Manag, t objectives and policies

The Group's business activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks, namely Credit risk, Liquidity risk, Currency risk, Interest risk, market risk, operational risk and
compliance risk. The group's Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for establishing and governing the Company's risk management framework.

The Board of Directors has an overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management framework. Risk management is integral to the whole
business of the group. The group has a system of controls in place to create an acceptable balance between the cost of risks occurring and the cost of managing the risks.

The management continually monitors the Group’s risk management process to ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved.

Risk management framework

Risk Management forms an integral part of the group's operations. The group’s Board of Directors with support of risk function has overall responsibility for the establishment
and oversight of the risk management framework. The Board of Directors has constituted following committees and defined their role for monitoring the risk management
policies of the group.

Board level committees

Risk Management Committee of the Board (RMC): The purpose of the Committee is to assist the Board in its oversight of various risks

i) Crodit Riok

ii) Liquidity and Interest Ratc Risk

iii) Operational Risk (Process, HR, Technology and Fraud)

iv) Strategic Risks (including emerging and external risks)

v) Compliance and Reputation Risk (compliance risk and reputation risk are covered through compliance risk management charter).

Borrowing and Investment Committee: Provide guidance on nature of investments that shall be undertaken, and approve credit limits for various counterparties, where
exposures in aggregate exceed a certain level.

Asset Liability Manag t C ittee of the Board (ALCO): ALCO shall review the Liquidity Risk and Interest Rate Risk on a regular basis and suggest necessary
actions based on its view and expectations on the liquidity and interest rate profile. The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks
faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits, The risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly
to reflect changes in the market conditions and the activities of the Group. The Group, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a
disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Risk Management Committee oversees how the management monitors compliance with the risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk
management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group.

The Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and
procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

Credit Committee (MCC): Committee members include Managing Director (MD), Chief Risk Officer (CRO), Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Chief Business Officer
(CBO). Committee approves policies on recommendation of concerned credit committee. It approves/ modifies/disapproves business proposal based on delegation of authority

(DOA) approved by the Board and :zcommends proposals.

Fraud Risk Manag t C ittee (FRMC): An independent Fraud Risk Management Committee (FRMC) comprising of top management representatives has been
constituted who review the matters related to fraud risk and approve / recommend actions against frauds. FRMC consists of CFO, Head-Risk, Chief Human Resources Officer

(CHRO) and Head-Legal and Compliance.
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Note 41: Fi ia] Risk Manag (Continued)

C Risk Management approach for handling earious types of risk
{(a) Credit risk
The credit risk is governed by defined credit policies and Board approved DOA which undergo periodic review. The credit policics outline the type of products that can be
offered, customer categories, targeted customer profile, credit approval process, DOA and limits ete. Each business unit is required to impl Group’s credit policies and
procedures and maintain the quality of its credit portfolio.

Credit Risk assessment methodology

The Group has a structured credit approval process, which incides a well-established procedure nf comprehensive credit appraisal. The credit appraisal process invelve:

an.al assessment of quanmallvc and qualitative parameters subject fo review and approval as per defined DOA. The credit assessment involves detailed analysis of industry,
ials, end usc etc. An intemal rating is also assigned to the borrower based on defined p For retail the credit ent is

based on a parameterised approach. Credit risk monitoring and portfolio review. The group measures, monitors dnd manages credit risk at an individual borrower level, The

credit risk for retail borrowers is being managed at portfolio level.

The credit assessment is carried out based on an internal risk assessment framework which rates the customers accordingly to various parameters, Data analytics is extensively

used for effective risk monitoring,

Loans & Advances

Credit risk for loan & advances is managed by the group through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to
which the Group grants credit terms in the normal course of business. Further, a major portion of exposure is secured by way of property and fixed deposits. Group also
ected losses in respect of loans & advances

maintains an allowance for impairement that rep its of exp

Muovement in Provision for Loss Allowsnice:

As at March | As at March

Particul.
eutars 31,2023 31,2022
Opening provision for loss allowance 75437
Impairement Provision as on the Acquisition Date (23rd Aug, 2021) - 188.23
Impairement loss recognised for period post acquisition 1,526.65 566.15
Closing provision for loss zllowance 2.281.02 75437
(b) Liquidity risk
A risk that the Group will difficulty in its day to day fi ial obligations is known as liquidity risk. Management of liquidity risk is donc as follows:
1) ALCO sels the strategy for ging liquidity risk with the busil bj
ii) ALCO has delegated the responsibility of’ ing overall liquidity risk and interest rate risk to Treasury. ALCO has set various gap limits for tracking liquidity risk. The

CFO and head of treasury monitor the gap limils with actuals and present the same to the MD & CEO,

iiii) Treasury department manages the liquidity position on a day-to~day basis and reviews daily reports covering the liquidity position of the Group. Treasury team ensures the
regulatory compliance to the liquidily risk related limits approved in the ALM policy by ALCO

iv) The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due without incurring unacceplable losses or risking damage lo

the group's reputation.

The key elements of the Group's liquidity risk management strategy are as follows:
1} Maintaining a diversified funding through market and bank borrowings such as det ial papers, subordinated debt, perj;etual debt, Inter-corporate
deposits (ICD’s), overdraft and bank term loans, Unwsed bank lings constitute the main liquidity back up to meet the eantingeney funding plan. Additionally, hased on Market

senario, the group also maintains a portfolio of highly liquid mutual fund units
i) Under the ALM guidclines, the dynamic liquidity statement and structural liquidity statement arc being prepared periodically to monitor the maturity gaps in the Asscts and
Liabilities cash flows

iii) The Group carries out stress (esting of cash flows on periodic basis and shares the results with ALCO to gauge the adequacy of liquidity.

The below table analyses the Group's financial liabilitics and financial assets into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period as at the reporting date to the

contractual maturity date
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Note 41: Fi ial Risk M t (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Maturity profile of financial liabilities

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities:

(Amount Rs. in Lakh)

As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Contractual Cash Flows
Total Lesythnnlé 6to12 months | 1to2years | 2toS5 years More than 5
months years
Trade payables 2,858.38 2,858.38 - - - =
Borrowings 4.91,267.32 46,422.36 35,659.62 81,174,15 | 2.39,273,66 88,737.53
Lease Liability 2,264.29 324.16 339.45 725.75 874.93 -
Other Financial Liabilities 10,089.68 10,078.38 - - - 11.30
Total 5,06,479.67 59,683.28 35,999.07 81,899.90 | 2,40,148.59 88,748.83
Particulars Contractual Cash Flows
Total Less than 6 6 to 12 months | 1to2 years | 2to5 years More than 5
months years
Cash and Bank balance 77,768.02 75,247.34 2,520.68 - - -
Loans 5,13,399.49 25,713.98 19,322.60 25,658.23 53,210.91 3,89,493.77
Other financial assets 1,634.84 585.46 - 140.01 225.09 684.28
Total 5,92,802.35 1,01,546.78 21,843.28 25,798.24 53,436.00 | 3,90,178.05
As at March 31, 2022
Particulars Contractual Cash Flows
Total fes{tang 6to12 months | 1to2years | 2to5 years e =
months years
Trade payables 2,044.20 2,044.20 - - - -
Barrowings (other than debt securities) 1,54,624.55 28,374.96 16,409.62 20,122.68 69,396.04 20,321.25
Lease Liability 1,584.13 202.91 212.51 453.33 715.38 -
Other Financial Liabilities 8,171.49 8.171.49 - - - =
Total 1,66.424.37 38,793.56 16,622.13 20,576.01 70,111.42 20,321.25

(c) Market risk

Risk due to change in market prices — e.g. interest rates, equity prices, foreign exchange rates and credit spreads, but not relating to changes in the obligor’s/issuer’s credit
standing and will affect the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments, The objective of the group's market risk management is to manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable risk tolerances levels to ensure the solvency while optimising the retumn on risk. ALCO sets up limits for each significant type of
risk/aggregated risk and various products in the portfolio, with market liquidity being a primary factor in determining the level of limits.

(d) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Interest rate risk can be

either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair values of fixed interest bearing investments because of
fluctuations in the interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of floating interest bearing investments will fluctuate because of fluctuations
in the interest rates.

Sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
The group has fixed rate interest bearing liabilities and financial assets where no interest rate risk is perceived

Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This

analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant.
Exposure to interest rate risk Group’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings and loans & advances to customers. The interest rate profile of the Group’s interest-bearing
financial instruments and sensitivity analysis as reported to the management of the Group are as follows:

Rate sensitive Rate sensitive
100bps 100bps

Particulars As at March 31, @ 10,‘""’5 @ 100bps change As at March @chang: @chang:)

2023 change increase decrease 31,2022 increase decrease
Fixed rate instruments
Investments 19.524.49 - - E s =
Borrowings 73.363.56 - - 9,921.18 - -
Loans 57,784 - - 6,031.88 - =
Floating rate instruments
Investments - - = - = =
Borrowings 4,17,903.76 4,179.04 (4.179.04)| 1.44.703.37 1,447.03 (1,447.03)
Loans 4.57.896.48 4.578.96 (4,578.96)| 1.73.313.38 1,733.13 (1.733.13)

e) Foreign currency risk
The group is currently not exposed to currency risk since its primary dealings are in INR.

f) Equity price risk
The group does not have any exposure to equities and hence it not exposed to any equity price risk.
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Note 41: Fi ial Risk Manag t (Continued)

g) Operational Risk
The risk of direct or indirect potential loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the Group's processes, personnel, systems, or from external factors other than

credit, compliance, reputation, market'and liquidity risks. Management of operational risk forms an integral part of the Group's enterprise wide risk management systemns.
Clear strategies and oversight by the Board of Directors and senior management, a strong operational risk management culture, effective internal control and reporting and
contingency planning are crucial elements of the Group's operational risk management framework.

Group has a Business Continuity Planning “BCP” framework in place, to ensure uninterrupted business operations in case any disruptive event occurs. The group immediately
activated its Business Continuity Plan (BCP) during this time of COVID 19 pandemic. The group continues to seamlessly carry out normal operations hence addressing the
risk associated with occurrence of the pandemic.

g) Cyber Security Risk
Various measures are adopted to effectively protect the Group against phishing. social media threats and rogue mobile. Group ensures seamless accessibility of critical

systems through virtual private network (VPN), thereby minimizing the risk of security/data breaches and cyber-attacks.

h) Regulatory and Compli Risk
Regulatory compliances are handled by Finance team, Treasury and Business teams in consultation with Compliance team. Statutory compliances are handled by Secretarial
team, Administrative and people process related compliances are handled by Administration & HR departments. As per regulatory requirements, required policies are adopted,

modified and rolled from time to time. Compliance to the defined policies is strictly adhered to.

Note 42: Capital management

The primary objective of the group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximizes its value. The
Group manages its capital structure and adjusts it, in light of changes in economic conditions. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the year
ended 31 March 2023 and for period ended 31 March 2022.

The Group monitors capital using Adjusted net debt to equity ratio. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total debt less cash and bank balances and Current
investments and adjusted capital includes capital & other equity reserves (other than hedge reserve).

The Group's net debt to adjusted equity ratio at the reporting date was as follows:
(Amount Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Non current borrowings 3,69,537.29 1,09,839.98
Current borrowings 81,810.92 44,784.57
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 73,721.58 22,968.53
Less: Other bank deposits 4,046.60 0.10
Less: Current Investments 19,524.49 4,129.77
Adjusted Net debt 3,54,055.54 1,27,526.15
Total equity 74,122.68 76,464.26
4.78 1.67

Net debt to adjusted equity ratio

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the year. The group is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.




Note 43: Disclosure of Ratios

Note:
i)

ii)

1ii)
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For the year ended March 31,

Return on capital employed

= EBIT/(Total Assets- Current Liabilities)

Particulars Formulas For the year ended March 31,
2023 2022

Current ratio = Current Assets /Current liabilities 1.49 0.64
Debt Equity rutio = Total Debt / Shareholders’ Equity 3.38 2.02
Debt service coverage ratio = Annual Net Operating Income / Total Debt Service 0.04 (0.02)
Return on equity ratio = Net Income/ Shareholder’s Equity (0.02) (0.08)
Inventory Turnover rotio = Cost of goods sold/Average Liventory N/A W/A
Trade payables turnover ratio |=Net Credit Purchases / Average Accounts Payable N/A N/A
Net profit ratio = Net Profit/Net Sales (0.09) (1.15)

0.03 (0.02)

The variance in return on equity, return on capital employed & net profit ratio is mainly on account of increase in revenues of the subsidiaries namely GHFL & GFL

The variance in current ratio & debt equity ratio is on account of increase in operations of subsidiaries namely GHFL & GFL

The variance in debt service coverage is on account of increase in operations & resultant increase in EBITA of subsidiaries namely GHFL & GFL

Note 44: Disclosure under Rule 11(e)(ii)

{Amount Rs. in Lakh)

Amount of
Name of Entity Date fund Relationship CIN Registered Address
advanced/
invested
02-Jun-22 | 20,995.00 PHKOJS}({fI\?:C};I?,I\giSTERN
Godrej Housiag Finance Limited Subsidiary U65100MH2018PLC315359 EXPRESS EIGHWAY, VIKHROLI
30-Mar-23 7,008.47 (EAST) MUMBAI 400079
02-Jun-22 I 47,500.00 PlROJs:gJ),ES\JI;STERN
Godrej Finance Limited Subsidiary U67120MH1992PLC065457 EXPRESS HIGHWAY, VIKHROLI
30-Mar-23 2,863.38 (EAST) MUMBAI 400079
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Note 45: Other statutory information

)

(ii)
(iii)

(iv)
)

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for
holding any Benami property

The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the
statutory period.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the

company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

Note 46: Corporate Social Responsibility

Contribution required to be made as per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is NIL for the current year
and previous period.

Note 47: General

Information with regards to other matters specified in Schedule Il to Companies Act, 2013 is either NIL or not applicable to
the Company for the year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Manish Shah Pifojsha Adi Godrej
Managing Director & CEO Non executive Chairperson
DIN: 06422627 DIN: 00432983

Kunal Karnani
CFO
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members Of
Godrej Capital Limited (formerly, Pyxis Holdings Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Ind-AS Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Godrej Capital Limited
(‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity, the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and the Notes to the Standalone Financial
Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as ‘Standalone Financial Statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as amended, (Ind-AS), and with other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023,
the loss, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on

that date.
Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors’ Report but does not include the Standalone

Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
ith the Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears

materially misstated.

LLP IN : AAH - 3437
STERED OFFICE : ESPLANADE HOUSE, 29, HAZARIMAL SOMANI MARG, FORT, MUMBALI 400 001
TEL.: (971) (22) 6158 6200, 6158 7200 FAX : (91) (22) 6158 627¢
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If, based on the work we have performed on the other information specified above, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have

nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in

India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of internal controls.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial

oY, Tﬁ“ﬁpntlols system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to

cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of the users of the Standalone Financial
Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal controls that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
l. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure
A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.
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e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023

g)

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March
31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in Annexure B. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to the

financial statements.

According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not paid any managerial remuneration which would
require requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

{ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.a) ‘I'he Management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or
entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the Note 24 to the accounts, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on audit procedures that the auditor has considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representation under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement.
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v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended March 31, 2023.

vi. As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the
Company only with effect from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable.

For Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 104607W/W 100166

pard 2

Roshni R. Marfatia

Partner

Membership No.: 106548
UDIN: 23106548BGUVXT9731
Place: Mumbai

Dated: May 4, 2023
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in our
Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of the Company on the Standalone Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2023)

I. a (A) The Company does not have any property, plant and equipment. Accordingly,

2. a
b.
3. a.
b.

paragraph 3(i)(a)(A) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(B) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and based
on the audit procedures performed by us, the Company has maintained proper records showing
full particulars of intangible assets.

The Company does not have any property, plant and equipment. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(i)(b), 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any property, plant and equipment. In our opinion and according
to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the audit procedures performed

by us, the Company has not revalued any of its intangible assets during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, representation obtained from
Management and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, no
proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at
March 31, 2023, for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

The Company does not have inventory. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of INR 5 crore, in
aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis
of security of current assets and hence paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the
audit procedures performed by us, the Company has made investments in two subsidiaries
during the year aggregating Rs. 78,366.84 lakhs. During the year ended March 31, 2023, the
Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
any other parties. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) of the Order with respect to guarantee / security
/ loans or advances in the nature of loans is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the
audit procedures performed by us, the investments made are not prejudicial to the Company’s

interest.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the
audit procedures performed by us, the Company has complied with the provisions of section
186 of the Act, with respect to investments made. The Company has not provided any guarantee
or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.
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According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, the Company has not accepted deposits from the public to which the directives
issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
rules framed thereunder apply. Accordingly, paragraph (v) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under
subsection (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out
by the Company. Hence, paragraph (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion:

the Company is generally regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues including Income
Tax, Goods and Services Tax and Cess with the appropriate authorities and there are no
undisputed amounts which have remained outstanding as at the last day of the financial year,
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. The Company does
not have any dues with respect to Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Duty of

Customs and Professional Tax.

there are no dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise,
Value Added Tax and Goods and Services Tax which have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, there are no transactions that are not recorded in the books of account which
have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961),

According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, the Company does not have any loans or other borrowings during / as at the
period ended March 31, 2023. Accordingly, paragraphs 3(ix)(a), (b), () and (f) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

On an overall examination of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries. The Company does not have any associates or joint ventures.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares or convertible
debentures (fully or partly or optionally). The Cofnpany has made private placement of shares
during the year and the requirements of section 42 of the Act have been complied with and the
funds raised have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised.

No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed in
form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of the audit report.
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As represented to us by the Management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

C.

12. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

13. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with Section 188 of the Act where applicable. The details of such related party
transactions have been disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements as required by the
applicable Ind AS. The provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company

since it is not required to constitute an audit committee.

14. According to the information and explanations give to us, it is not mandatory for the Company
to have an internal audit system. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable

to the Company.

LS. According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with Directors
or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to

the Company.

16. a. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
(RBI) Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

b. The Company has not conducted any non-banking financial or housing finance activities.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

c¢. The company is a Core Investment Company not requiring registration with the RBI as defined
in the regulations made by the RBI. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

d. According to the information and explanation given to us by the management, the Group does
not have any other core investment companies which are registered with the RBI.

17. The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year. It had incurred cash
losses aggregating Rs. 831.40 lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year.

18. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditor during the year ended March 31, 2023,
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

19. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither

\;’\?f!\;\\ give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year
Qi \gr- \ from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.
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20. According to the information and explanations give to us, and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, the provisions of section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 104607W/W 100166

M"’?/

Roshni R. Marfatia

Partner

Membership No.: 106548
UDIN: 23106548BGUVXT9731
Place: Mumbai

Dated: May 4, 2023
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in Para 2 (f) ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in our Independent
Auditor’s Report to the members of the Company on the Standalone Financial Statements for the

year ended March 31, 2023).

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Godrej
Capital Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on internal controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”)”. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
contputtys pulicicy, the sufeguwding ol ity ussets, the provention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

= p‘ig believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
ir audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that:

[ pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect

the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of Management and Directors of the Company; and

I~

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on

the financial statements.

fad

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper Management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal

control stated in the Guidance Note.

For Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 104607W/W 100166

PR

Roshni R. Marfatia

Partner

Membership No.: 106548
UDIN: 23106548BGUVXT9731
Place: Mumbai

Dated: May 4, 2023




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly known as Pyxis Holdings Limited)
STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2023

(Amount in Lakhs)
Note As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A ASSETS
Non Current Assets
Intangible Assets 3 237.89 -
Financial Assets
Investments in Subsidiaries 4 1,58,255.26 79,888.42
Other Tax Assets (net) 8.22 44.64
Other Non Current Assets 5 88.90 76.02
Current Assets
Financial Assets
Investments 6 10.23 -
Cash and Cash Equivalents il 21.47 66.08
Other Financial Assets 8 523 -
TOTAL ASSETS 1,58.627.19 80.,075.16
B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 9 24.55 14.81
Other Equity 10 1,58,451.31 80,056.50
TOTAL EQUITY 1,58,475.86 80,071.31
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables 11
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprise and
small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than small 19.73 3.66
enterprises and micro enterprises
Other Financial Liabilities 12 119.24 -
Other Current Liabilities 13 12.37 0.19
TOTAL LIABILITIES 151.33 3.85
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,58.627.19 80.075.16
Significant Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS For & on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number 104607W/W 100166

prrat )

Roshni Marfatia anish Shah sha Adi Godrej
Partner Managing Director Non executive

and CEO Chairperson
Membership Number: 106548 DIN: 06422627 DIN: 00432983

Date: May 4, 2023
Place: Mumbai

Kunal Karnani
CFO




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly known as Pyxis Holdings Limited)
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(Amount in Lakhs)
Not For the year ended For the year ended
. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Other Income 14 159.34 53.04
Total Income 159.34 53.04
Expenses
Employee Benefits Expenses 15 66.06 857.60
Amortisation Expenses 3 7.74 -
Other Expenses 16 91.49 26.84
Total Expenses 165.29 884.44
(Loss) Before Tax (5.95) (831.40)
Tax Expense

Current Tax - -

Short provision for earlier years 9.73 -

Deferred Tax Charge/ (Credit) - -
(Loss) After Tax (15.68) (831.40)
Other Comprehensive Income - -
Total Comprehensive (Loss) for the year (15.68) (831.40)
Earnings Per Equity Share

Basic and Diluted in Rs. 17 (7.17) (864.92)

Face Value Per Share in Rs. 10.00 10.00
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS For & on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number 104607W/W100166 2

Z &]
Roshni Marfatia MANISH SHAH " Pirojsha Adi Godrej
Partner Managing Director and Non executive
CEO Chairperson
DIN: 06422627 DIN: 00432983

Membership Number: 106548
Date: May 4, 2023
Place: Mumbai

W

Kunal Karnani
CFO




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly known as Pyxis Holdings Limited)
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

A. Equity Share Capital
Particulars

Balance at the Beginning of the Year
Changes in Equity Sharc Capital during the Ycar
Balance at the end of the Year

B. Other Equity

Particulars

Balance as at April 01, 2021

(Loss) for the Year

Employee Stock Compensation Expense for the Year
Total

Additions to Security Premium Account

Share Issue Expenses

Balance as at March 31, 2022

(Loss) for the Year

Employee Stock Compensation Expense for the Year
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year

Total

Additions to Security Premium Account
Share Issue Expenses
Balance as at March 31, 2023

(Amount in Lakhs)
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
1,48,124 14.81 39,091 391
97,372 9.74 1,09,033 10.90
2,45,496 24.55 1,48,124 14.81
Reserves and Surplus Other Equity

Employee Stock

Retained Earnings S.e P o Compensation Total
Premium Reserve
Reserve

(13.44) - 6.01 (13.43)
(831.40) - - (831.40)

- - 0.04 0.04
(844.83) - 0.05 (844.78)

- 80,905.32 - 80,905.32
(4.04) - (4.04)

(844.83) 80,901.28 0.05 80,056.50
(15.68) - - (15.68)

- - 22.06 22.06

(860.51) 80,901.28 22.11 80,062.88

- 78,414.21 - 78,414.21
(25.78) - (25.78)

(860.51) 1,59,289.71 22.11 1,58,451.31

A description of the purposes of each reserve within equity has been disclosed in the Note 8.1.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Firm Registration Number 104607W/W100166

e

Roshni Marfatia
Partner

Membership Number: 106548
Date: May 4, 2023
Place: Mumbai

For & on pehall of the Board of Directors

MANISH SHAH

Managing Director and CEO

DIN: 06422627

Kunal Karnani
CFO

Pirojsha Adi Godrej
Non executive
Chairperson

DIN: 00432983




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly known as Pyxis Holdings Limited)
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

A Cash Flow from Operating Activities

(Loss) before tax

Adjustments for :

Employee Stock Compensation Expense
Net gain on fair value changes

Interest income on fixed deposit

Operating Cash Flow before Working Capital Changes

Adjustments for :

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Financial Liabilities
Increase in Other Current Liabilities

(Increase) in Other Current Assets

Cash (used in) Operations

Dircct Taxcs paid
Net Cash (Utilised) in Operating Activities

Cash Flow From Investing Activities

Purchase of Sharcs

Purchase of Intangible

Purchasc of Investment

Sale of Investment

Proceeds from fixed deposits with banks

Investment in fixed deposits with banks

Interest income received from fixed deposits with banks

Net Cash (Utilised) in Investing Activities

Cash Flow From Financing Activities

Procceds from issuc of Equity shares

Share issue expenses

Net Cash Generated From Financing Activities

Net (Decrease)/Increase In Cash And Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

Note:

Cash and Cash Equivalents at year end comprises:
Cash in Hand

Balances with Banks in Current Accounts

The Cash Flows Statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) on

For the year ended

{Amount in Lakhs)

For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

(5.95) (831.40)

22.06 0.04

(157.92) (18.34)

- (34.70)

(141.81) (884.40)

16.07 (8.35)

12.18 0.14

(18.10) (75.92)
(131.66) (968.53)
26.69 (44.63)
(A) (104.97) (1,013.16)
(68,495.00) (79,888.42)

(118.65) -

(1,16,292.14) (24,831.75)

1,16,439.82 24,850.09

52.64 44,260.95
(52.61) (44,260.95)

(0.03) 34.70
(B) (68,465.96) (79,835.38)
68,552.10 80,916.23
(25.78) (4.04)

©) 68,526.32 80,912.19
(A+B+C) (44.61) 63.64
66.08 2.44

21.47 66.08

21.47 66.08

21.47 66.08

"Statement of Cash Flows" and presents cash flows by operating. investing and financing activities.

As per our report of even date attached

For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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TR ead A VI P cracyiy Known as Pyais Hoblings Limited)
NOTEL 10 VUL ITANDALONE VINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ tGeneral Infornuation

a)

b)

c)

d)

€)

Lorpeorate Iufurmation

GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED ("the Company") (Formerly known as Pyxis Holdings Limited) was incorporated on Septembier 06, 2019
having Corporate Identity WNumber (CIN): UG7100MH2019PLC330262 as a company limited by shares. The Company was formed with
the purpose to carry on the business of an investment company and to invest in and acquire, hold, sell, buy, subscribe or otherwise deal
in shares, stocks, debentures, bonds, units, negotiable instruments, obligations and other financial instruments issued by any company.

Basis of preparation
The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified by

Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 to be read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. The Company’s
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 comprises of the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of
Cash Flows, Statement of Changes in Equity and Notes to Financial Statements. The Financial Statements of the Company for the year
ended March 31, 2023 are approved by the Board of Directors on May 4, 2023,

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. All assets and liabilities have
been classified as current or non current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Division II of
Schedule IIT to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and services and the time between acquisition of assets for
processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the
purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees in lakhs, which is the functional currency of the Company. All financial

information has been rounded to the nearest Lakh, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of Measurement
The Ind AS Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost convention and on accrual method of

accounting.

Use of Estimates, Judgements & Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires Management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions in the application of
accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. Continuous evaluation is done on the estimution and Judgments based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of fiytyre gvents that ara helirved 10 he rasranabile, Chwnyguu in the eatimates uie seeugulsed L iy YRE LICSL HMses,

On the reporting dates there are no assets, liabilities, income and expenses which require the management to make judgements, estimates

or assumptions.

Recent accounting pronouncements and impact thereon:
Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting

policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods
beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant in

the standalone financial statements
Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - This amendment has introduced a definition of

‘accounting estimates’ and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes
in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The
Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its standalone financial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes - This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to
transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual
periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its standalone

financial statement.




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly kiown as Pyxis Holdings Limited)
NOTES T3 THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g) Measurement of fair vaiues
The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values for financial instruments.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The Management regularly reviews
significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to
measure fair values, then the Management assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that such
valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, includinig the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible.
Fair values are calegorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markeis for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the

entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change
has occurred.

2 Significant Accounting Policies

a) Intangible assets
Recognition and measurement
The intangible assets consists of Brand & Trademark. Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic
benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the group and the cost of the asset can be measured r<liably. Intangible assets are
stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated amortisation and cumulative impairment.

Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Intangible assets under development”.

Amortisation of intangible assets

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life. Intangible assets are amortised as per
management's estimate over a period of 10 years or licence period whichever is earlier. Intangible assets are assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method are

reviewed at least at each financial year end.

b) Financial Assets

(i) Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognised at fair value, in case of Financial assets which are recognised at fair value through
profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. In other cases, the transaction cost is

attributed to the acquisition value of the financial asset.

(ii) Subsequent measurement
Financial assets are subsequently classified and measured at
» amortised cost
» fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
+ fair value through other comprehensive income (FV OCI).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business model
for managing financial assets.




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly known'as Pyxis Holdings Limited)
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMEINTS
(i) Lguity Instruments
All investments in equity instruments classified under financial assets are initially measured at fair value , the Company may, on initial
recognition, irrevocably elect (o measure the same either at FVOCI or FVTPL. :

The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Fair value changes on an equity instrument is recognised as
income in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the Company has elected to measure such instrument at FVOCL Fair value changes
excluding dividends, on an equity instrument measured at FVOCI are recognized in OCL Amounts recognised in OCI are not
subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividend income on the investments in equity instruments are recognised
as income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iv) Derecognition
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers
the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the asset.

(v) Impairment of Financial Asset

Expected credit losses are recognized for all financial assets subsequent to initial recognition other than financials assets in FVTPL
category.

For financial assets other than trade receivables, as per Ind AS 109, the Company recognises 12 month expected credit losses for all
originated or acquired financial assets if at the reporting date the credit risk of the financial asset has not increased significantly since its
initial recognition. The expected credit losses are measured as lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on financial asset increases
significantly since its initial recognition. The Company's trade receivables do not contain significant financing component and loss
allowance on trade receivables is measured at an amount equal to life time expected losses i.e. expected cash shortfall.

The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.
¢) Financial Liabilities

(i) Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liability
are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

(ii) Subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities are subsequently classified and measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Financial liabilities carried at fair

value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss.

(iii) Derecognition
A financial liavility is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. Financial liability is
also derecognised on modification of terms of contract and when cash flows under modified terms are substantially different.

d) Revenue Recognition
Other Income:
(1) Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the same is established.
(ii) Interest income is recognised on the time proportion basis.
(iii) Profit/loss on sale of investments is accounted on the trade dates.

e) Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable

legal right to offSet the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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2)

h)

i)

1)
)

k)

)

GODREY CAPITAL LIMITED (F ormerly known as Pyxis Holdings Limited)
NOTES TO THE STANDALOML FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

T

Taxes en Income

‘Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the provisions of the Incb‘l‘né"_" v

tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences; being the differences between the taxable income and accounting income that originate
in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax assets subject to the consideration of prudence
are recognised and carried forward only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. The tax effect is calculated on the accumulated timing differences at the
year end based on the tax rates and laws enacted or substantially enacted on the Balance Sheet date.

Cash & Cash Equivalents:
Cash & Cash Equivalents comprises of cash at bank and in hand and deposits with banks with an original maturity of three months or

less.

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a
non- cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments.

Investment in Subsidiaries & Associates
Investment in Subsidiaries and Associates are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of

impairment exists, the carrying amount of investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On the
disposal of investments in subsidiaries, associates and Jointly controlled entities, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Earnings Per Share:
Basic eamnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting

preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid
equity shares are treated as fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid
equity share during the reporting period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstzading during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Employee Benefits
Short-term employee benefits
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the services are classified as short-term employee benefits.

Benefits such as salaries, performaice incentives, etc., are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the Statement of
Profit and Loas of the year inn whivk e tnployes rendered the related services,

Share-based Payment

The grant date fair value of equity-settled share-based payment awards/options granted to employee is recognised as an employee benefit
expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The
fair value of the options at the grant date is calculated on the basis of Black Scholes Model. The amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the number of awards/options for which the related service are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately
recognised as an expense is based on the number of awards/options that meet the related service at vesting period.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
Provisions are recognised in the accounts in respect of present obligation as a result of past event, the amount of which can be reliably

estimated and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to its
present value and are determined based on current best estimate.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an
outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a
present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a
reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, as a contingent liability.




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly known as Pyxis Holdings Limited)
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 3: Other Intangible Assets (Amount in Lakhs)
Intangible Assets
Brand &
Trademark Total

Gross Carrying Amount
As at March 31, 2022

Additions 245.63 245.63
Disposals 2 -
As at March 31, 2023 245.63 245.63
Amortisation as on 1st April, 2022 - -
Additions 7.74 7.74
Disposals : -
Amortisation as on 31st March, 2023 7.74 7.74
Net Carrying Amount

As at March 31, 2023 237.89 237.89

As at March 31, 2022 %
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i GONREY CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly known as ’Pyxis Holdings Limited)
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 5: Other Non Current Assets

Bulance with government authorities
Other Receivables

Note 6: Current Financial Assets - Investments
Investments in Mutual Funds

At fair value through profit and loss (Quoted)
ABSLI Liquid Fund Growth Direct Plan

Note 7: Current Financial Assets - Cash and Cash Equivalents

() Balances with Banks
-Current Accounts

Note 8: Other Flnanclal Assets

Other Receivables

(Amount in Lakhs)

As ai As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
88.70 75.92
0.20 0.10
88.90 76.02
10.23 =
10.23 =
21.47 66.08
21.47 66.08

5.23

5.23




GODRES CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly known as Pyxis Roldings Limited) '
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

! (Amount in Lakhs)
Note 9: Equity Share Capital

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Authorised Share Capital
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 5,00,000 50.00 5,00,000 50.00
5,00,000 50.00 5,00,000 50.00
Issued, Subseribed and kully paid up
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each, fully paid up 2,45,496 24.55 1,48,124 14.81
2,45,496 24.55 148,124 14.81
Notes:
a) Reconciliation of Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the Year -
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
No. of Shares Rs. No. of Shares Rs.
Equity Shares
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,48,124 14.81 39,091 3.91
Issued during the year 97,372 9.74 1,09,033 10.90
Outstanding at the end of the year 2,45,496 24.55 1,48,124 14.81

b) Terms / Rights attached to Shares -
i) Equity Shares
The Company has one class of equity shares. Each equity share entitles the holder to one vote. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to
receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to their shareholding.
¢) Details of Shares held by Holding Entity, Ultimate holding Entity, their subsidiaries and associates -
Name of the Shareholder As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
No. of Shares % held No. of Shares % held
(1) Equity shares held by holding entity:
Godrej Industries Limited 2,14,130 87.23% 1,29,033 87.11%
d) Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company -
Name of the Shareholder As at March 31, 2023 = As at March 31,2022
No. of Shares % held No. of Shares % held
(i) Equity shares held by holding entity:
Godrej Industries Limited 2,14,130 87.23% 1,29,033 87.11%
f) There are no equity shares reserved for issue under options and contracts / commitments for the sale of shares / disinvestment.
g) i) The Company has not allotted any shares as fully paid up pursuant to contracts without payment being received in cash; or
ii) Allotted as fully paid up bonus shares: or
iii) Bought back any of its equity shares.
h) There are no calls unpaid on any equity shares.
i) There are no forfeited shares.
Jj) No shareholding of promoter as on 3 1st March, 2023 or as on 31st March, 2022
Note 10: Other Equity
As at As at
Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Securities Premium Reserve 1,59,289.72 80,901.28
Retained Earnings (860.52) (844.83)
Employee Stock Grants Outstanding 22.11 0.05
1,58,451.31 80,056.50

Note 10.1: Nature and Purpose of Reserves

Securities Premium Reserve
The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium Reserve. This Reserve can be used only for the

purposes specified in the Companies Act, 2013.

Retained Earnings
Retained Earnings are losses incurred by the Company till date.

\’\J‘ ""3"“ Employee Stock Grants Outstanding
~— -

\

The fair value of the equity-settled share based payment transactions with employees is recognised in Profit and Loss with the correspé

ployee stock grants outstanding account




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly known as Pyxis Holdings Limited)
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amount in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Note 11: Current Liabilities- Trade Payables

(i) Trade Payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprise and small enterprises - -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than small enterprises and micro 19.73 3.66

19.73 3.66

Note 11(a):Trade Payable Ageing Schedule

31st March, 2023
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Not Due Less than 1 year 1-2 vears 2-3 years More than 3 Total
(i) MSME = z 3 = 2 s
(ii) Others 13.23 6.50 - - - 19.73
(i) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
|(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
31st March, 2022
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of pavment
Not Due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 vears More than 3 Total
(i) MSME - . = - - -
(ii) Others 2.00 1.66 - - - 3.66
(iii) Disputed dues ~ MSME - - - - - -
|Giv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -

Note 11(b): Micro and Small Enterprises Disclosure

During the year micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) have

Particul As at As at
g Mareh 31,2023 || March 31, 2022

(a) Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to each supplier at
the end of each accounting year (but within due date as per MSME act

i) Principal amount due to micro and small enterprise .
ii) Interest due on above

(b) Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterpris s Development Act, 2006, alongwith the amount of the payment -
made 1o the supplier beyond the appointed day during the period

(c} Interest due and gayable for the period of delay in making payment (which have
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the period) but without adding interest -
specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Act, 2006
(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting

year )
(e} Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises

Disclosure of outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprise under Trade Payables is based on the information available with the
Company regarding the status of the suppliers as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

Note 12: Other Financial Liabilities

Capital vendor for Intangible 119.24 -
119.24 -
Note 13: Other Current Liabilities
12.37 0.19

Statutory Dues Payable

12.37 0.19




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (F ormerly known as Pyxis Holdings Limited)
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCJAL STATEMENTS

Note 14: Other Income

Interest Income on deposits with banks
Net gain on financial instruments classified at fair value through profit or loss
Interest on Income t'ax Retund

Note 15: Employee Benefits Expenses

Salaries and Wages
Expenses on Employee Stock Option Scheme

Note 16: Other Expenses

Rates and Taxes

Legal and Professional Fees

Advertisement and Sales Promotion expenses
Payments to Auditors

Software Expenses

Miscellaneous Expenses

Note 16.1: Payment to Auditors
a) Statutory Audit
b) Limited review
c) Other services

Note 17: Earnings Per Equity Share

Net (Loss) for Computation of Basic and Diluted
Earnings per Share

Number of Equity Shares at the beginning of the Year
Add: Shares issued during the period
Number of Equity Shares at the end of the period

Weighted Average Number of Shares
Face Value of Share in Rs.
Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share

(Amount in Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
0.03 34.70
157.91 1834
1.40 -
159.34 53.04
66.02 857.56
0.04 0.04
66.06 857.60
5.81 2.73
57.08 17.80
17.55 -
10.86 6.03
0.13 0.28
0.06 5
91.49 26.84
5.36 2.04
4.90 3.54
0.60 045
(15.68) A) (831.40)
1,48,124.00 39,091.00
97.372.00 1,09,033.00
2,45.496.00 1,48,124.00
2,18,833.43 (B) 96,123.88
10.00 10.00
(7.17) (A)/(B) (864.92)




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly known as Pyxis Ifoldings Limited)
NOTRES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Naote 18: Contingent Linbilities and Commitments
The contingent liabilitics and commitments as at March 31, 2023 are Nil (Previous Period: Nil)

Note 19: Share based payments

A) ESOP Scheme 2021:

The Godrej Capital Employee Stock Option Scheme 2021 (“ESOP Scheme 2021”) of the Company was approved and adopted by its members at an Extraordinary General
Meecting held on January 5, 2021, The Scheme is administered by Company's Board of Directors. The Scheme applies to all the Eligible Employees, who are the permanent
employees of the Company or any Subsidiary of the Company, on the date of Grant of Options. The Compensation Committee of the Company would decide the entitlement of
cach cmployee based on his/her performance, level, grade, seniority and such other parameters as may be decided by the Compensation Committee. The Exercise Price will be
as decided by the Compensation Commitee. The Options granted would vest after twenty one months but not later than fifty seven months from the date of Grant of Options or
as may be decided by Compensation committee, Excrcise period is 7 (seven) years from the date of Vesting of Options or such other period as may be decided by the
Compensation Commiltee, within which the Employee should exercise his right to apply for transfer of Equity Shares of the Company to him putsuant to the Option Vested in

him in accordance with the ESOP Scheme 2021

Description of the share based payment plans:
The expense recognised for empliyee services receivad during the year / period is shown in the fallowing table:

Particulars For the year For the year
’ - March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Lxpenses arising (rom equity-settled share-based payment 0.04 0.04
Total (.04 0.04
Movements during the year
1ie Tolliwing table illustrates the number and weighted fveérape exercise price (WAEP) ol and movement in, share options during the year:
For the year For the year
Particulars Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Number WAEP Number WAEP
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 2,759 - 2,378 -
Granted during the year - 10 416 10
Lapsed during the year 122 10 35 10
I()n tstanding at the end of the year 2,637 10 2,759 -
The weighted average fair values of the options Rs. 4.29. The stock price of the options is Rs. 10.
Tl far value of each option is estimated on the date of pgrant using the Black-Scholes model with the following ions:
. For the year For the year
Particulars
Hrieutis March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Share price Rs 4.29 Rs 4.29
Risk liee interest rvate 7.00% 7.00%
Fair Value of Option 0.9to 1.6 09to 1.6
Volatility 42.70% 42.70%
Fime to Matunty 5 years b years
£xercise price Rs. 10 Rs, 10

Expected Volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the comparable Company's shaie price over the effects of non-uansferability,

exercise testiictions and behavioural considerations,




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED (Formerly known as Pyxis Holdings Limited)
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Share wprions oulstantling a the end of the yenr have the following expiry date and exercise prices:

Jinary 29,2021 October 28, 2029 10 319.00 328.00
Februy 3, 203 | November 2, 2029 10 229.00 251.00
Iebrawy 112021 November 10, 2029 10 9.00 9.00
May 10 2021 February S, 2030 10 61.00 61.00
June 22, 2021 March 20, 2030 10 43.00 43.00
Jannry 29, 202 | Cretober 28, 2030 1 331.00 340.00
February 3, 2021 November 2, 2030 10 232.00 254.00
Febramy |1, 2021 November 10, 2030 10 9.00 9.00
May 10,2021 February 5. 2031 10 63,00 63.00
June 22,2021 March 20, 2031 10 45.00 45.00
Joniy 29, 2021 Oetoher 28, 2031 0 312 00 37000
February 3, 2021 November 2, 2031 10 215.00 236.00
Febraury 11, 2021 November 10, 2031 10 8.00 8.00
May 10, 2021 February 5, 2032 10 58.00 58.00
June 22,2021 March 20, 2032 10 42,00 42,00
January 29, 2021 October 28, 2032 10 319.00 328.00
Febiuary 3, 2021 November 2, 2032 10 229.00 251.00
Febrawmy 11,2021 November 10. 2032 10 9.00 9.00
May 10, 2021 February 5. 2033 10 61,00 61,00
June 22, 2021 Maich 20, 2033 10 43.00 43.00
Tatal 2.637.00 2,759.00

B) ESOP Scheme 2022

The Godrej Capital Employee Stock Option Scheme 2022 (“*ESOP Scheme 2022™) of the Company was approved and adopted by its members at an Anuual General Meeting
held on June 1, 2022, The Scheme is administered by Company's Board of Directors. The Scheme applies to all the Eligible Employees, who are the permanent employees of
the Company or any Subsidiary of the Company, on the date of Grant of Options. The Compensation Commiltee of the Company would decide the entitlement of each
employee based on his/ther performance, level, grade, seniority and such other parameters as may be decided by the Compensation Commiltee, The Exercise Price for each
Option will be will be determined by the Board The Options granted would vest after a minimum period of twenty four months which may be extended to thirty six months but
not later than seventy two months fiom the date of Grant of Options or as may be decided by Compensation committee. Exercise period is 7 (seven) years from the date of
Vesting of Options or such other period as may be decided by the Board, within which the Employee should exercise his right to apply for transfer of Equity Shares of the
Company to him pursuant to the Option Vested in him in accordance with the ESOP Scheme 2022,

Movements during the year

The [ollowing mble illusuates the number and weilited wvernue ixercise price (WAEP) of, and movement in, share options during the viar:
For the year For the year

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Particulurs

Number WAEP Number WAEP
Outstanding at the beginning of the year - - - -
Granted during the year 934 1] = -
Lapsed during the year s E - -
[()utsl:mdiug at the end of the year 934 10 3 =

The weighted average fair values of the options granted during the year was Rs, 80,496.49, The weighted average stock price of the options granted during

the year ended March 31, 2023 is Rs. 10

Particulars

The fuir value ol each optien is estimated on the date of gant o s

the Black-Scholes model with the followin

For the year
March 31, 2023

Share price

Fair Value of Option
Risk {ree interest rate
Volatility

Time to Maturity
Exeicise price

Rs. 22,346.12 to Rs. 33,172.25

Rs. 80,496 .49

6.69% to 7,34%
20.02% to 29.33%
7 years

Rs. 80,496.49

Share opions vustanding at the end of the venr have the [allowis

1 expiry date and exercise prices:

i assumptions:

Grant Date Expiry date Exerciselprice '\gl‘:ll:lcl é_lp,hz(?j:

09 November 2022 30 June 2031 80,496.49 28
09 November 2022 30 June 2032 80,496.49 28
09 November 2022 30 June 2033 80,496.49 27
09 November 2022 30 June 2034 80,496.49 28
09 November 2022 30 April 2032 80,496.49 146
09 November 2022 30 April 2033 80,496.49 146
09 November 2022 30 April 2034 80.496.49 145
09 November 2022 30 April 2035 80,496.49 146
09 November 2022 30 November 2032 80,496.49 28
09 November 2022 30 November 2033 80,496.49 28
09 November 2022 30 November 2034 8§0.496.49 28
09 November 2022 30 November 2035 80,496.49 28
10 March 2023 28 February 2033 80,496.49 32
10 March 2023 28 February 2034 $0.496.49 32
10 March 2023 28 February 2035 80,496.49 32
10 March 2023 29 February 2036 80.496.49 32
- 934.00
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Note 20: Related party disclosure as required by Ind AS 24

(1) Name of Related Parties

Godiej Properties Ltd
Kunal Kamani
Manish Shah

[Nume of reluted party Nature of relationship
Godiej Industries Limited Holding Company
Godrej Housing Finance Limited Subsidiary

Godiej Finance Limited Subsidiary

PAN FIN Investment LLP Minority shareholder
Godrej Capital Employee Stock Option Trust Subsidiary

Companies under Common Onwership
CFO (w.e.f 5th August, 2022)
Managing Director and CEQ (w.e.f 7th March, 2022)

(1) Transactions with related parties

{Amount in Lakhs)

Sr. No. Nature of transaction

Holding Entity / Key Managerinl

Company Subsidiary

Personnel - Director

Companes under
Common Onwership

Issue of share capital & security permium
Previous Period

i)[Investment in subsidiaries

Previous Period

Reimbuzsement of Cost paid to
Previous Period

Reimbursement of Cost recovered from
Previous Period

v) |Remuneration

Previous Period

i) |Amount Given to Trust

Previous Period

Outstanding Balance - Receivable

)

iii)

iv)

v

vii)
Previous Period
Qutstanding Balance - Payable
Previous Period

viii)

68,500.10 . =
80,917.50 : =

- 68,495.00 =
= 79.888.41 *
- 75.06 -
- 648.10 -
- 22.02 =

(¢) Significant Related Party Disclosure

For the year ended | For the year ended

Godrej Properties Limited

Sr. No. Nature of transaction Mar 31, 2023 Mar 31,2022
1)|Investment in subsidiaries
Godrej Housing Finance Limited 47,500.00 73,302.89
Godrej Finance Limited 20,995.00 6,585.53
ii)|Reimbursement of Cost paid to
Godiej Finance Limited 62,30 -
Godrej Housing Finance Limited 12.75 648.10
iii)| Purchase of Brand logo
245.63 =




GODREJ CAPITAL LIM}TED (Formerly known as Pyxis Holdings Lirited)
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Note 21: Fair Value Mcasurement
Refer note 1 sub note (g) and note 2 sub note (b) and (c) for accounting policy on Financial Instruments.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,

other than in a forced or liquidation safe.

Accounting, classification and fair values
Carrying amounts and fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy, are as follows.

As at March 31, 2023 (Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars Carrying Amount Fair Value
FVTPL | FvTOCI A":‘;:':‘ed Total | Levell | Level2 | Level3 Total
Financial assets
Non Current
Investments 1,58,255.26 - - 1,58,255.26 - - 1,58,255.26 | 1,58,255.26
Other Financial Assets
Current
Investments 10.23 - - 10.23 10.23 - - 10.23
Cash and cash equivalents - - 21.47 21.47 - - - -
1.58!565.49 - 21.47 | 1,58,286.96 10.23 - 1,58,255.26 | 1,58,265.49
Financial liabilities
Current
Trade payables - - 19.73 19.73 - - - -
Other Financial Liabilities - - 119.24 119.24 - - - -
- - 138.97 138.97 = - - E
As at March 31, 2022 {(Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars Carrying Amount Fair Value
FVTIPL | FVTOCI A":‘;::"e" Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Finnncial assets
Non Current
Investments 79.888.42 - - 79,888.42 - - 79,888.42 79,888.42
Other Financial Assets
Current
Cash and cash equivalents - - 66.08 66.08 - - - =
79,888.42 - 66.08 79,954.50 - - 79,888.42 79,888.42
Financial liabilities
Current -
Trade payables - - 3.66 3.66 - - - -
- - 3.66 3.66 - - - -

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, other financial liabilities approximate their carrying value largely due to short term maturities of these
instruments,
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Note 21: Financial Risk Management
t

() Financial risk Management objectives and policies
The Company's business activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks, namely Credit risk, Liquidity risk, Currency risk, Interest risk, The Company's Board of

Directors has the overall responsibility for establishing and goveming the Company's risk management framework.

The Board of Directors has an overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Ce pany’s risk 1t framework. Risk management is integral to
the whole business of the Company. The Company has a system of controls in place to create an acceptable balance between the cost of risks occurring and the cost of

managing the risks.
The management continually monitors the Company’s risk management process to ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved.

(b) Credit risk
Credit risk is the potentinl financial loss resulting from the failure of a party to settle its financial and contractual obligations to the Company as and when they fall due.

The Company’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash and cash equivalents. The financial assets represent cash and cash equivalents. Bank accounts are maintained /
carried out with Banks having high credit ratings,

(¢) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they

are due, under botli normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unaceeptable losses or risking damage to the Ce pany's rep

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position on the basis of expected cash flows. This monitoring includes financial ratios and takes into

account the accessibility of cash and cash equivalents.

Maturity profile of financial liabilities

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities: (Amount in Lakhs)
Contractual Cash Flows
Particulars Carrying Total Within Within
Amount 1 vear 2-5 years
As at March 31, 2023
Other Financial Liabilities 119.24 119.24 119,24 -
Trade payables 19,73 19.73 19.73 -
Total 138.97 138.97 138.97 -
As at March 2, 2022
Trade payables 3.66 3.66 3.66 -
Total 3.66 3.66 3.66 -
(d) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates and foreign currency will affect the Company’s income. The objective of markel risk
management is to manage and contro] market risk exposwes wilhin sceeptable parameters, while optimising the return on risk

lnterest rate risk
The Company has no exposure to changes in interest rate as it has no interest-bearing financial instruments with variable interest rates.

Foreign cnrrency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company has no

exposure to significant foreign currency risk as it has no financial assets and liabilities in foreign currency.

Note 22: Capital management
The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximizes

Company’s value.

The Company manages its capital structure and adjusts it, in light of changes in economic conditions. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the year ended 31 March 2023 and for period ended 31 March 2022.

(Amount Rs. in Lakh)
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Total Liabilities 151.33 3.85
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (21.47) (66.08)

Less: Current Investment (10.23) -

The Company’s net debt to adjusted equity ratio at the reporting date was as follows:
Particulars

Net debt 119.63 62.24
Total equit; 1,58,475.86 80,071.31
0.00 (0.00)

Net debt to adjusted equity ratio

There were no changes in the Company’s approach to capital management during the year. The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.




Note: 23 Disclosure of Ratios

Goadrej Capital Limited (formerly known as Pyxis Holdings Limited)
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars Formulas For the Year Ended | For the Year Ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current ratio = Current Assets /Current liabilities 0.24 17.18
Debt Equity ratio =Total Debt / Shareholders’ Equity NA NA
Debt service coverage ratio = Annual Net Operating Income / Total Debt Service NA NA
Return on equity ratio = Net Income/ Shareholder’s Equity (0.00) (0.01)
Inventory Turnover ratio = Cost of goods sold/Average Inventory N/A N/A
Trade payables turnover ratio| = Net Credit Purchases / Average Accounts Payable N/A N/A
Return on capital employed = EBIT/(Total Assets- Current Liabilities) (0.00) (0.01)

Note: Change in current ratio is more than 25% in 22-23 vis a vis 21-22 on account of reduction in Bank balance in the current year and on
account of payable for intangible assets as at March 31, 2023 in relation to acquisition of Brand and Trade name during the current year.

Note 24: Disclosure under Rule 11(e)(ii)
(Amount in Lakhs)

Amount
of fund
advanced/
invested

Registered Address

Name of Entity Date Relationship CIN

GODREJ ONE,
PIROJSHANAGAR,
EASTERN EXPRESS
HIGHWAY, VIKHROLI
(EAST) MUMBAI

02-Jun-22 | 20995 400079
GODREJ ONE,
PIROJSHANAGAR,
EASTERN EXPRESS
HIGHWAY, VIKHROLI
(EAST) MUMBAI

30-Mar-23 7,008 400079
GODREJ ONE,
PIROJSHANAGAR,
EASTERN EXPRESS
UST120MHI992PLC0G | 1y o FES
Sl (EAST) MUMBAI
47,500 400079
GODREJ ONE,
PIROJSHANAGAR,
EASTERN EXPRESS
UST120MHI992PLCOS | 7 Ol ol D08
B (EAST) MUMBAI
30-Mar-23 2,863 400079

U65100MH2018PLC31
5359

Subsidiary

Godrej Housing Finance Limited

U65100MH2018PLC31
5359

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Godrej Finance Limited 02-Jun-22

Subsidiary
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Segment Information (Amount in Lakh)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Sr No. Particulars Audited Audited
1 Segment Revenue
Investing & Other activities 159.34 53.04
2 Segment Results
Investing & Other activities (15.68) (831.40)
3 Segment Assets
Investing & Other activities 1,58,627.19 80,075.16
4 Segment Liabilities
151.33 3.85

Investing & Other activities
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Note 25: Corporate Social Responsibility
Contribution required to be made as per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is NIL for the current year and previous period.

Note 26: Other statutory information

(0
(i)
(iii)
@)

v)

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any
Benami property

The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries)

with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company

(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Company has not entered into any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed
as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of

the Income Tax Act, 1961

Note 27: General
Information with regards to other matters specified in Schedule III to Companies Act, 2013 is either NIL or not applicable to the Company for the

year.

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors

Manish Shah irojsha Adi Godrej
Managing Director Non executive
and CEO Chairperson

DIN: 06422627 DIN: 00432983

Yo’
Kunal Karnani
CFO




